AGENDA
COUNCIL MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9
October 14, 2025
3:00 pm
Council Chambers

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

DELEGATION

MINUTES/NOTES

1. Council Committee Minutes
- September 23, 2025
2. Council Meeting Minutes
- September 23, 2025

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Tony Bruder — Division 1

- Waterton Biosphere September Newsletter
Reeve Rick Lemire — Division 2

Councillor Dave Cox— Division 3

Councillor Jim Welsch - Division 4

Councillor John MacGarva — Division 5

A

ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1.

Operations

a) Public Works Department Report
- Report from Public Works dated October 7, 2025
- Schedule A — Shop/Fleet Report
b) Utilities & Infrastructure Report
- Report from Utilities and Infrastructure dated October 10, 2025

Finance

Planning and Community Services

a) Road Closure Resolution Portion of Uncancelled Road Plan 1835 HX within NE 12-7-3 W5
- Report from Development, dated October 9, 2025

b) Community Energy Analysis and Design Grants
- Report from Development, dated October 9, 2025

Municipal

a) CAO Report
- Report from Administration, dated October 10, 2025

b) Requested Feedback for Proposed Bylaws (1365-25 Traffic and 1366-25 Community
Standards)
- Report from Administration, dated October 8, 2025

CORRESPONDENCE

1)

For Action

a) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Kainai/Blood Tribe and the Town of
Cardston & Surrounding Area
- Provided by Councillor Bruder
b) New Year’s Eve Fireworks
- Request from Castle Mountain Resort



¢) Upcoming Mandate Review of Canada Post Could Affect Jobs and Services in your
Community

- Federal Government Plan: Canada Post Corporation Review

2) For Information

a) Kootenai Brown’s Spooky Town

- Taking Place Saturday, October 25, 2025
b) Cavvy Energy WAG Report

- Fall 2025
¢) Community Solar Open House

- Thursday, October 23, 2025

NEW BUSINESS
CLOSED MEETING SESSION

a) Public Works Call Log — ATIA Sec. 29.1
b) Committee Member Discussion — ATIA Sec. 29.1

ADJOURNMENT



Cl

MINUTES
REGULAR COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9
Tuesday, September 23, 2025,
11:00 am
Council Chambers

Present: Reeve Rick Lemire, Deputy Reeve Tony Bruder, Councillors Dave Cox, John MacGarva and Jim
Welsch.

Staff: CAO Roland Milligan, Director of Corporate Services Meghan Dobie, Public Works Manager Alan McRae,
Development Officer Laura McKinnon, Finance Manager Brendan Schlossberger, and Executive Assistant
Jessica McClelland.

Reeve Rick Lemire called the meeting to order, the time being 11:00 am.
1. Approval of Agenda
Councillor Dave Cox
Moved that the agenda for the September 23, 2025, Committee Meeting be amended to include:
6) Letter from Cardston County — Re: Grizzly Bears
AND THAT the agenda be approved as amended.
Carried
2. Delegations

Members of the Waterton Biosphere Reserve were present at this time. Elizabeth Anderson, Conservation
Biologist with Waterton Biosphere Region; Jeff Bectell, Carnivores and Communities Program
coordinator; and Nora Manners, the Executive Director, attended.

They presented to Council plans for the association in 2026. They will begin preparing documentation for
their upcoming ten-year Periodic Review process, which ensures that we continue to meet the criteria for
designation as a UNESCO Biosphere Reserve and are adequately addressing the complementary activities
of biodiversity conservation, sustainable use of natural resources, and capacity building in local
communities. Under the Man and the Biosphere program, every biosphere reserve/region also requires
three interrelated zones: the core area, the buffer zone, and a transition area, also known as the ‘area of
cooperation.’

They would like input from municipal representatives on the criteria for smoothing the interior boundary
between the buffer and transition zone, and are proposing a half-day workshop in 2026 for this purpose.
Discussions are also underway with the Government of Alberta to expand the core area, including the
inclusion of Castle Provincial Park and Castle Wildland Park. They suggested that any input from the MD
of Pincher Creek on this possible expansion is also welcome. Council will discuss appointing a member
to the Biosphere Board, as Councillor Bruder is only involved with the Deadstock Program.

Additionally, they reviewed the stewardship of the Species at Risk program, which has been a primary
priority for the past decade. They achieve this through extensive monitoring, detection of potential risks
to local species, outreach programs, workshops, and educational events. They have been able to support



REGULAR COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 2025

landowners with focused habitat projects and conservation and stewardship through project work and
outreach. Another part of outreach involves youth programs in schools, like Day at the Creek and Wetland
Field Day.

The biosphere also operates a Carnivores and Communities Program aimed at preventing carnivores from
causing issues on farms. Through educational opportunities, on-farm assistance, and tours, they help make
ranches safer. The Council suggested that part of the educational content provided by the biosphere should
emphasize the role of what the biosphere can and cannot control. The council also hopes that the deadstock
program (for both wildlife and domestic animals) can be reviewed, and that all partners can come together
to find a better solution.

Council thanked the members for attending and looks forward to future collaborations to provide
educational opportunities for our residents.

Members left at 11:48 am.
3. Closed Session
Councillor Jim Welsch
Moved that the Council move into closed session to discuss the following, the time being 11:49 am.
a) Public Works Call Log — ATIA Sec. 29.1
b) ALUS Discussion — ATIA Sec. 30.1
c¢) Joint Funds Distribution Process Discussion — ATIA Sec. 29.1
d) Draft Policy C-CO-008 Public Art — ATIA Sec. 28.1
Councillor Tony Bruder
Moved that Council move out of closed session, the time being 12:37 pm.
Carried

4. Rural Municipalities of Alberta Convention — November 17 through 20, 2025

All of Council will be attending and registered. Council doesn’t feel the need to meet with RCMP at the
convention.

5. Council Committees

The list was sent to the Council, and they will provide the time commitments for the Committees they sit
on.

6. Cardston County Letter — Re: Grizzly Bears

MD will co-sign the Cardston County Letter regarding Grizzly Bears and suggest they also cc the MD’s
local MLA.



REGULAR COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 2025

7. Round Table

e Heritage Acres Farm Days

e Coffee with Council — Lundbreck

e Survey markers — FORTIS replacing poles in the area
e Interview by Canadian Press re: windmills

8. Adjournment

Councillor Dave Cox

Moved that the committee meeting adjourn at 1:20 pm.

Carried

REEVE

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER



C2

MINUTES 100022
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 23, 2025

The Regular Meeting of Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 was held on Tuesday,
September 23, 2025, at 3:00 pm, in the Council Chambers of the Municipal District Administration
Building, Pincher Creek, Alberta.

PRESENT

STAFF

Reeve Rick Lemire, Deputy Reeve Tony Bruder, and Councillors Dave Cox, John
MacGarva and Jim Welsch.

CAO Roland Milligan, Director of Corporate Services Meghan Dobie, Public Works
Manager Alan McRae, Development Officer Laura McKinnon, and Executive Assistant
Jessica McClelland.

Reeve Rick Lemire called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm.

A.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Councillor Tony Bruder 25/438

Moved that the agenda for September 23, 2025, be amended to include:

G4b) Draft Public Art Policy — C-CO-008
Ja) Personnel Issue — ATIA 29-1

AND THAT the agenda be approved as amended.

Carried
DELEGATIONS
MINUTES
1) Council Committee Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025

2)

3)

4)

Councillor John MacGarva 25/439

Moved that the minutes of the Council Committee Meeting of September 9, 2025, be
approved as presented.

Carried
Council Meeting Minutes — September 9, 2025
Councillor Jim Welsch 25/440

Moved that the minutes of the Council Meeting of September 9, 2025, be approved as
presented.

Carried
Special Council Meeting Minutes — September 10, 2025
Councillor Tony Bruder 25/441
Moved that the minutes of the Special Council Meeting of September 10, 2025, be
approved as presented.
Carried
Coftee with Council — Lundbreck — September 16, 2025
Councillor Dave Cox 25/442

Moved that the notes of the Coffee with Council in Lundbreck on September 16, 2025,
be approved as presented.

Carried



10023

Minutes

Council Meeting

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
September 23, 2025

D.

G.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

(Moved from G3a)

Community Solar Planning Open House

Councillor Dave Cox 25/443

Moved that administration be directed to schedule the Community Solar Planning Open
House, date to be determined.
Carried

Laura McKinnon left the meeting at this time, the time being 3:12 pm.
a) Healthcare Committee
Councillor Tony Bruder 25/444

Moved that the MD suggest that the Terms of Reference include two members at large, one
from each Municipality,

AND THAT administration be directed to clarify funding distribution with the Town of
Pincher Creek.

Carried
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Tony Bruder — Division 1
Joint Budget
ALUS
Coffee with Council — Lundbreck
Rural Medicine Dinner (Healthcare Committee)
Foothills Little Bow
2. Reeve Rick Lemire — Division 2
3. Councillor Dave Cox— Division 3
- Castle Mountain Community Association
- Pincher Creek Regional Library
- Chinook Arch Regional Library
- Foothills Little Bow
- Pincher Creek Foundation
4. Councillor Jim Welsch - Division 4
- Foothills Little Bow
- Pincher Creek Foundation
- Police Advisory Committee
5. Councillor John MacGarva — Division 5
- Foothills Little Bow
- Coffee with Council — Lundbreck
- Rural Medicine Dinner (Healthcare Committee)

Councillor John MacGarva 25/445
Moved to accept the Committee Reports as information.
Carried
ADMINISTRATION REPORTS
1. Operations

a) Public Works Operations Report



10024

Council Meeting
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
September 23, 2025

Councillor Tony Bruder 25/446

Moved that Council receive the Public Works Operations Report, including
Schedule A — Shop/Fleet Report, for the period September 1, 2025, to September 14,
2025, as information.

Carried

b) Bridge File #75481 TWP RD 93B over Olin Creek Tributary - Construction
Completion End Date

Councillor Jim Welsch 25/447
Moved that Council approve allowing administration to tender the bridge file # 75481,
Olin Creek Tributary Culvert Completion project, with a 2026 construction completion

date.

Carried

Finance

a) Legal Fees
Councillor Dave Cox 25/448

Moved that Council approve $37,000 for the legal fees from Castle River Campground
appeal filing, with said funds coming from the Tax Rate Stabilization Reserve;

AND THAT Council approve $20,000 for additional legal fees incurred in 2025 related
to the review of the Pincher Creek Emergency Services Membership Agreement, with
said funds coming from the Tax Rate Stabilization Reserve.

Carried
b) CPO Vehicle Capital Expenditure
Councillor Tony Bruder 25/449
Moved that Council approve the capital expenditure for the purchase of the Community

Peace Officer Vehicle, up to a maximum of $110,000 in 2025 funds, for a total of
$113,400, with said funds coming from the Equipment Reserve.

Carried
Development and Community Services
Municipal
a) CAO Report
Councillor Jim Welsch 25/450

Moved that Council receive the CAO Report for the period September 8, 2025, to
September 19, 2025, as information.

Carried
b) Policy C-CO-008 Public Art
Councillor John MacGarva 25/451

Moved that Council approve policy C-CO-008 Public Art,
AND THAT this policy be reviewed in a year's time.

Carried



10025

Minutes

Council Meeting

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
September 23, 2025

H. CORRESPONDENCE

A. For Action

a) Letter of Support Request — Water Conservation Project — Hamlets

Councillor Dave Cox 25/452

Moved that a letter of support be granted for the Beaver Mines Community Association
and the Lundbreck Gardners' application for Community Foundation funding for water
conservation projects.

Carried
B. For Information
Waterton Reservoir Provincial Recreation Area
Councillor Tony Bruder 25/453

Moved that a representative from Alberta Forestry and Parks be invited to a future
Council meeting to discuss the development process at the Waterton Reservoir
Provincial Recreation Area (PRA).

Carried
a) Assessment Workshop for Municipal Assessment Review Board Members

Councillor Tony Bruder 25/454

Moved that Councillor Jim Welsch be authorized to attend the Assessment Workshop
for Municipal Assessment Review Board Members from the Land & Property Rights
Tribunal on November 7, 2025.

Carried

Councillor Tony Bruder 25/455
Moved that the following be received as information:

a) Bear Safety Workshop for Rural Families
- MD hosting on October 3, 2025

b) MD of Pincher Creek Community Peace Officer Open House
- MD Hosting October 6, 2025

Carried
I. NEW BUSINESS
J. CLOSED SESSION
Councillor Jim Welsch 25/456

Moved that Council move into closed session to discuss the following, the time being 4:35 pm.
a) Personnel Issue — ATIA Sec. 29.1
Councillor Dave Cox 25/457

Moved that Council move out of closed session, the time being 5:37 pm.

Carried



10026
Minutes
Council Meeting
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
September 23, 2025
K. ADJOURNMENT
Councillor Jim Welsch 25/458

Moved that Council adjourn the meeting, the time being 5:37 pm.

Carried

REEVE

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER



F1a

FALL COLOURS - Residents of the Waterton Biosphere Region have enjoyed above
average temperatures this month but lower than average precipitation. Forecasts are
calling for a warmer than average winter with mixed precipitation.

(Photo: T. Porter/WBR)



National Day for Truth and Reconciliation - The Blackfoot People have lived in
southwest Alberta for thousands of years. They have a well-established culture complete
with language, traditions, beliefs, stories, and medicine.

The Niitsitapi have developed an intimate understanding of this land, including a deep
knowledge of plants and animals, the seasons, and the stars. They have lived in balance
with nature for generations before the Naapiikoan (western settlers) arrived. Their story is
written in stone, held fast by the soil. It is locked in the hearts of those still here.

By understanding the past and celebrating tradition we can work together to make this
country stronger.

CACP Field Work



Bear Den Project Progressing

Staff with the WBR's Carnivores and
Communities Program have been conducting
field work this month, following up on
suspected bear den reports from area
landowners.

There was no mistaking this grizzly den on a
steep east facing slope in Cardston County.
From left, CACP staff Jeff Bectell, Mike
Meeks, and Andrea Morehouse.

If you think you have a bear den on your
property, please let us know. Contact Jeff at
jpbectell@watertonbiosphere.com or Andrea
at amorehouse@watertonbiosphere.com.

(Photos: A. Morehouse/WBR)

The WBR Fall WilderBlitz 2025

A big thank you goes out to folks who participated in the Waterton Biosphere
Region's Fall 2025 Wilderblitz. We had some great weather this month for people
to get out in the wilderness and collect observations of flora and fauna!

A'wilderblitz' is what the WBR calls their iNaturalist supported BioBlitz events. It's a
fun and engaging way to take part in citizen science and learn about nature. Plants
and animals live everywhere, whether that's on public land or on people's own land
here in the biosphere region.

We want to encourage people from all walks of life to get out in nature and share
what you see. Citizen science is a valuable way to contribute to our knowledge and
understanding of the natural world here in the Waterton Biosphere Region. It's great
fun, great exercise, and a cool, techy way to be a part of something bigger.

This time observers noted 239 observations of 188 different species. Participants
were entered into a draw and Dawn Hill was the picked as the winner of a WBR
swag package.

For more information about WBR's wilderblitz events, visit our iNaturalist page
HERE and navigate to projects. Stay tuned to our Facebook and Instagram
accounts for updates and announcements about future wilderblitz events!


mailto:jbectell@watertonbiosphere.com
mailto:amorehouse@watertonbiosphere.com
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtDYfHLTzHxJK83Fqb6ceTAkAFNAAawvqEz-a0z2nB7A8KM1LXJqyhOpZa8KDbmLtjzm9VD-U6tnfTvv5CyYQWzILosLa1JgE7zRmq8uO_8geCGLsLYXw99BABFIdfJ-eXg%3D%3D%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650108955%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=behFdVD8EToIagttOZ3%2Fmf5TEIGc4O1WTsTrZPpZHNk%3D&reserved=0

Bear Safety Event - Oct. 3rd



BE SAFE, BE AWARE - The Waterton Biosphere Region and the MD of Pincher Creek are
hosting this free event on Friday, October 3. Register as soon as possible by calling
(403)627-3130, or email info@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca. If registering via email, please
include names, contact information, age of participant (if under 18) and whether they are
an MD resident.

Wetland Field Day 2025


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtDYfHLTzHxJK9mzDyo3RMwD8p2EgeUgr-Rq2polmqaxQgDgfPloQuWCNg9n8CRKvCoDQS3y2GhBU90n3jQCJkIdTA2AUIRtrSpiVLV6WHPxF5e_V3vhlhZw%3D%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650154200%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lslRIf5wGvnt73E34%2Fg319GNx0WHtuI80gFSJacETBk%3D&reserved=0

OUTDOOR EDUCATION IS AWESOME - Waterton Biosphere Region staff and Parks
Canada personnel enjoyed a beautiful day in the sun with students from Cardston
Elementary School September 9th at Police Outpost Provincial Park. Grade four students
and their teachers took part in various biodiversity and conservation sessions throughout
the day, learning about food webs, carnivore safety, the benefits of beavers, and more.
The WBR and its partners are committed to investing in youth through experiential
outdoor learning opportunities.

(Photos: T. Porter/WBR)

DONATE

o0

Visit our Website

Waterton Biosphere Reserve Association | BOX 7 | PINCHER CREEK, AB TOK 1W0 CA


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtKRHBb5waYHfenq0GEs5Q0rwiC10rI1AnXft8f-PK-IkDRSK8fr8SrtoFhvEJjtwxWL0sW53AAsbKHjt3D9yNJWIjbse76_WzYsKbOMibwGOoD1N9o-f-9UwuZtf343awewDjOzVoemj_BrTIfsKbgBNQE3Lzxs38-mHfTOx3xp-dlt5pPwyX62sWbEcISzk9uMKvTDmFg88rH6qlFqBC1C2dAo1k15yDB40CawFtNmMjgzkEyynEn37HNsaZiSHqx9IhsLy7k3uMoaQ9dsDgd6tNtXL8ajnDg%3D%3D%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650193790%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3oX73Hk67CPstK9nEDjxy4GczPwib9E6sMNaZIej79Y%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtEQG05ZBxh5uxqPSA9gUMoAOOcezhLq_7DQYl-z1_ZuPAxBIQvz-pfzbIKE-P_f7cwGnmm8eCyJU_vnV1XjFreK2GThQZ2-srmVUJTBZjQqYbXtiUy6yKHpyXEPK795Rkopq6IDZ3hus%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650465394%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=g93Y48VxEeO8BVmjBbe%2F0nMPEzUah13sytZEKZywLsY%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtEQG05ZBxh5uxqPSA9gUMoAOOcezhLq_7DQYl-z1_ZuPAxBIQvz-pfzbIKE-P_f7cwGnmm8eCyJU_vnV1XjFreK2GThQZ2-srmVUJTBZjQqYbXtiUy6yKHpyXEPK795Rkopq6IDZ3hus%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650465394%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=g93Y48VxEeO8BVmjBbe%2F0nMPEzUah13sytZEKZywLsY%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtD87XEuocwnO9zk62uR3Gh7_I9jKuDgEjT6d-w5HpPXa_aLd6waCwPO_Htm6zNUW5v5BcCSdpci13VnNXJxsNTA_cvxg3ThHlM-HOv648Udp%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650510144%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QQnLjkIgB65NrSRse%2Bq5LKvn1uE7pzwZ%2FJ0M5yS%2FCMs%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtD87XEuocwnO9zk62uR3Gh7_I9jKuDgEjT6d-w5HpPXa_aLd6waCwPO_Htm6zNUW5v5BcCSdpci13VnNXJxsNTA_cvxg3ThHlM-HOv648Udp%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650510144%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QQnLjkIgB65NrSRse%2Bq5LKvn1uE7pzwZ%2FJ0M5yS%2FCMs%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtPPfJALRqpELzoKUgwDlkCsHVK_VVhEf1MN4NKZUek4GA901Pt0dQ1cgNVBLKKQwbO8JTL9-MptrIWvonjc1H2i51OGQuG-HdsDp6lrt3MK_qMM4F5c8Fh73jioIuCiMsQ%3D%3D%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650547906%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SnGFZ0GkKbq6BRSNlyJBooPr7jXdjVg66rWaiOtRR7E%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtPPfJALRqpELzoKUgwDlkCsHVK_VVhEf1MN4NKZUek4GA901Pt0dQ1cgNVBLKKQwbO8JTL9-MptrIWvonjc1H2i51OGQuG-HdsDp6lrt3MK_qMM4F5c8Fh73jioIuCiMsQ%3D%3D%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650547906%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SnGFZ0GkKbq6BRSNlyJBooPr7jXdjVg66rWaiOtRR7E%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtIPNbUfEgQeQzS2b6cKxNe-3TcheYhxLAdFe4TPHvaT7rYd02sLxhodX4JIPo6Ef7fsEe6qqqeM5y2dJzIcE355lq0W3wzqZVZOpAcqmFPHVCIOPz7zlXoXW4DlRERr85dgdD_6nWl7P%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650589718%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=snfKHZealWK%2B9OB5nu0ASACvdb2UdsWUK2iGmj%2FC8OI%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtIPNbUfEgQeQzS2b6cKxNe-3TcheYhxLAdFe4TPHvaT7rYd02sLxhodX4JIPo6Ef7fsEe6qqqeM5y2dJzIcE355lq0W3wzqZVZOpAcqmFPHVCIOPz7zlXoXW4DlRERr85dgdD_6nWl7P%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650589718%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=snfKHZealWK%2B9OB5nu0ASACvdb2UdsWUK2iGmj%2FC8OI%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fa8b7kqsab.cc.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001m_THvnM4xZJYoZvN4wG118-Ai6tNZrtdWd2trrdkCDvxTCxOt2rTtOpavCdluNr0nXglj9fjY9CoQJ-TH0OCYQ0apRUZOKMU4oJaBpqHVlPbh5QyrgeTwqEpEIZHiQzue6euvi7Skqde9HncDZ3o_uV6fSZg7fgPsekL65CCj38%3D%26c%3DmIlIu1MqizbqrKS2t-rzzkTZSmbQ5QJTsC1vmcZCzkrMYWICqZqnYA%3D%3D%26ch%3D-N_5UtN8TtNgg4EolNt09YhL4wl1pviZPgH8j1eG17OPeZ-kzt4vfA%3D%3D&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C366611a55b1b4e78cc9f08de00757500%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638948701650627177%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1f4wge2RPArHe1Vh7ZSsIRjJ1UViOKgPNsaTifKyP9Q%3D&reserved=0

Gla



Recommendation to Council

-Load brush from Fishburn church/cemetery and haul to landfill

-Temporary snow fence installation started on September 22 with T-rail pounding currently ongoing.
-Install delineators on North Pincher Station on corner where ditching and reworking of shoulder took
place for capital project.

-Bridge maintenance- Repair hazard markers on BF2064 (Div 1) and BF74175 (Div 3)

-Water trucks assisting Divisional graders

-Bridge/road maintenance- Clean out under guardrails- Southside of Southfork road, Todd creek bridge
and RR29-4 (Div 2)

EVENTS

-JHSC meeting-September 25"
-New benefits presentation and sign-up- October 1%

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

NONE

Presented to: Council Page 2 of 2
Date of Meeting: October 14, 2025







M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9
UTILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE REPORT

Glb

General Projects Budget Update
2025 Approved Budget: $3,858,000 $3,847,000. Oct 6" Spend:

$609,923 Sep-2" Spend: $421 10521

Large Ongoing Projects (Pre-2025 Construction Start)

e Beaver Mines Water/Wastewater Projects
o Final turnover package received, GIS information received Jan 20"
0 Warranty discussions
0 WWTP Septic tank experiencing infiltration. Fix work complete
0 Lagoon de-icers tripping with known GFCI breaker issue. On-site troubleshoot
day occurred June 25", issue with wiring still exists. Local contractor brought
in to help assess, work complete end of August. Two (2) agitators sent for
warranty. Re-installation complete, all agitators operational
O Awaiting minor changes to Lift Station Record drawings

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 1 of 12



e Oldman Reservoir Water Intake Low Level Project

0 $1.68M grant application finalized Jan 30™, 2024
= Approval received for $1.8M project, covering up to 75% of costs

0 DFPP (Drought and Flood Protection Program) grant application approved, topping up

Capital Project and covering 70% of costs for a Drought Projects Assessment

0 Troubleshooting difficulties with reaching flow capacity of VIS’
= All accessible testing complete without resolution
» TFA received Jul. 25" to access structure once levels drop
» Discussion held with hydrogeologist and original driller Aug. 18" to

discuss plan to pull pumps, perform lower pressure test (once accessible)
o Pitless adapter pressure test part ordered

= Scoping parts and pricing for Potassium Permanganate treatment addition

e Bridge File 2488 — Fisher Bridge, NW-26-07-02-W5M

0 Scour identified under existing abutment. Costed plan included in 2025 budget

0 Re-kickoff complete Jul 22", Work started Aug 5%

0 Challenges with isolation/pumping delayed physical work. Abutment work complete
as of Aug. 19, Stair work and site cleanup complete

o Final inspection complete Sep. 10™. Provincial BIM inspection also complete by 3™
party. Deficiencies identified and addressed pending final review by MD

0 Reviewing posted load signage requirements

e Watercourse Crossing Inspection & Remediation Project — 100% Grant funded
o Funding agreement signed Mar. 28", 2023 for $1.55M
= Extension received to March 31%, 2027
0 Funder confirmed prelim. eng. is acceptable on BF 1348 Connelly Creek (for use of
remaining $600,000 in funds)

Large Projects Planned for 2025 Implementation

Water Operations Remote Monitoring System Migration — 2025

SCADA System Migration to VTScada. Includes replacement of main desktop at WTP, full
migration programming and HMIs (Human Machine Interfaces), and licensing software

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 2 of 12



0 Awarded Jan 22" Desktop computer arrived. Updated and delivered to MPE
0 New computer ordered and under re-programing due to continued issues with original
computer shutting down

Meyers Corner Road Culvert Replacement
Replace failed 900mm culvert via boring method

0 Sizing and aquatic assessment complete by Roseke in 2024. Design complete for a bored
1.37m x 35m Smooth Walled Welded Pipe

0 Contract awarded Jul 17%, Kickoffheld Jul. 29", Temp. fence setup by MD forces. Work
began Aug. 20", substantially complete

0 Re-seeding and fencing complete

0 Work substantially complete. Temp. fence to be removed in Spring to allow seed to take

Community Events Board, Admin Building

Single sided electric community events board on Admin building to advertise current
events and upcoming meetings

0 Project contingent on receiving required permits
o Sign permit send to Town Apr. 11", Approved during May 215 MSDA, appeal
period complete June 11"
PO placed on Genoptic Smart Display P10, holding on shipment until we are ready
Confirmed no building permit required. Electrical permit will be required
Council approved additional budget for standalone install Sep. 9™
Stamped design received Sep. 22™
Awaiting final cost confirmation from contractor prior to finalizing permit
modifications with Town

O O0OO0OO0O0o

e Bridge File 70175 — Yarrow Creek Bridge Rehabilitation, NW-22-003-030 W4M

Perform a pile splice repair on two piles in the west abutment, replace the east pile cap,
place fill and riprap at the west headslope, minor wheel guard repairs & repairs to
timber span, channel realignment, and west abutment riprap work

o Sensitive stream habitat, SARA permit required. Construction window of August
o DFO SARA permit approval received Jan 151
o Direction given to closeout land acquisition with RDS for bed/banks portion
» Provincial Roadway Disposition (RDS) submitted, awaiting approval.
TFA submitted July 15% while awaiting RDS approval, received Aug 6™.
RDS received Aug. 8%
o Tender closed July 5®. Two (2) bids received. Awarded to low bidder (Volker Stevin)
for $277,682 (Eng. Est. $362,500)
o WSC gauge wire move complete
o Pre-construction kickoff held Aug 15", Phase 1 (stream/riprap work) complete. Phase 2
(bridge repairs) anticipated to occur starting week of Council meeting. Notification sent
out

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 3 of 12



e WCR #1: Iron Creek under Tapay (Carbondale) Road, LSD SE-15-006-03 W5M
Install new 4.7m x 2m x 15m L corrugated steel box culvert to remediate fish passage
concerns on Iron Creek under the WCR program (100% funded)

0 Tender for install awarded to TA Excavating alongside South Todd Creek Tributary

0 Completion: September 30, 2025

0 Permit submissions have begun. DFO has indicated review period for Species At Risk
Act (SARA) permit will be 90 days despite delays in processing to date

= Revised SARA permit received Mar. 11

0 Kickoff meeting complete Jul. 28™. Contractor mobilized. Single lane on-site detour

bridge in place for entire month
= Fish isolation and bird sweep successful
= Concrete footings poured, riprap and assembly underway
* In-stream work complete, stream opened Sep 1%

0 Roadway re-opened with significant construction progress. Final inspection complete
Oct. 2", Large list of surface related deficiencies noted. Addressed over weekend,
with some still sub standard

0 Contractual end date extended to Oct. 24" to allow time to plant Cottonwood palisades
once dormant as recommended

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 4 of 12



e Bridge File 70417 — TWN RD 70 over Castle River Trib., SE-05-007-01 W5M

6.1m clear span bridge with extensive rot and voids in piles and pile caps. Replace
with two (2) 2m x 27m L CSPs

Flexibility with construction timing window, anticipate Fall construction
Awarded to low bidder (NLSS) for $325,660 (Eng. Est. $367,749)

Council gave direction to proceed with road closure/detour at Aug. 26" meeting
Traffic plan reviewed and suggestions given pending concurrent construction
Awaiting contractor mobilization. Not anticipated until late October

O O0OO0OO0Oo

e Bridge File 00470 — Toney Rd over Pincher Creek Trib., SE-02-006-01 W5M

1.6m x 43m L culvert with significant perforations and minor deflections. Install Steel
Wall Pipe Liner (SWPL)

0 Flexibility with construction timing window, anticipate Fall construction

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 5 of 12



Tender released Jul. 23", closed Aug. 8. Four (4) bids received.

Awarded to low bidder (Volker Stevin) for $198,744.46 (Eng. Est. $282,471)
Traffic accommodation plan reviewed. Eco Plan sent for review

Kick off held Oct. 3", construction starting Oct. 7. Public notification released.
Anticipate 10 days of construction

O O0O0OoOo

e Bridge File 75481 — TWN RD 93B over Olin Creek Trib., SW-23-009-01 W5M

1.5m x 24m L culvert with high deflection and corrosion. Replace with two (2) 1.2m x
36m L CSPs

0 Preliminary engineering complete Oct. 11, STIP unsuccessful
Design complete and reviewed by MD, upstream detour planned
0 Gave direction to proceed with RDS and land
= RDS submitted
= Land package received Jun. 18, comments sent back for discussion.
Direction given to proceed with fixing road plan misalignment within
entire %4 section. Working with surveyor to finalize
0 Initial sampling complete, confirmed DFO review not required. Flexible construction
timing window
0 Council approved Mar. 31, 2026 construction completion date at Sep. 23" meeting
0 Revised legal plan received Oct. 6™, finalizing tender preparations

@]

Large Projects Planned for 2026 Implementation

e WCR #3: Connelly Creek under Connelly Rd (BF 1348), LSD SW-03-008-02 W5M

Preliminary engineering to replace or remediate the 3m x 49m L (5.6m cover)
structural plate corrugated steel pipe (SPCSP) and remediate fish passage under the
WCR Program. Structure is #8 on 10-year capital plan.

Received funder guidance/approval to proceed with prelim eng. under WCR program
Council approval received Mar. 11", 2025

Preliminary engineering kicked off Apr. 3™

Survey complete Apr. 251

O O0OO0Oo

e Pisony Road over Cow Creek Tributary Culvert, LSD NE-01-009-03 W5M

Non-bridge sized culvert failing on dead end road. 2024 funds to assess appropriate
replacement sizing and design. Stream flows all year and culvert is likely undersized

0 Preliminary engineering and basic aquatic assessment kicked off Jan. 31st, 2025, with
Roseke. Reduced prelim. eng. scope compared to Bridge Files

0 Preliminary engineering assessment received Jun. 16™. Under review

O Anticipate construction 2026

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 6 of 12



e Bridge File 71542 — Waldron Flats over Indian Creek, SE-07-010-01 W5M

2m x 2.2m x 32m L culvert with isolated perforations in the roof of 3 rings and 1 ring
on the foot. Minor roof and sidewall deflection

0 Preliminary engineering and aquatic assessment kicked off Jan. 31, 2025 with Roseke
to determine appropriate replacement design or maintenance (liner). Currently, it is
anticipated replacement will be required

0 Survey complete, drafted. Prelim. eng. received and reviewed Sep 9%/10™

0 Recommendation is a 2.7m dia. x 48m long culvert replacement. Maintenance/liner
options not feasible. Other feasible options include dual culverts (higher cost, reduced
design life) or pre-cast concrete box (longer design life but 1.7x cost)

O Anticipate construction 2026

e Bridge File 76203 — West End Maycroft over Ernst Creek, NW-26-010-03 W5M

2.5m x 1.8m x 20m L culvert with 3 cracked rings in sidewall with 85mm remaining.
Deflection and corrosion also present

0 Preliminary engineering and aquatic assessment kicked off Jan. 31%, 2025 with Roseke
to determine if maintenance of cracked seams is feasible via weld, shotcrete beam, etc.
or if replacement has a better lifecycle value

O Anticipate construction 2026

0 Survey complete, drafted. Prelim. eng. 80% complete

e Therriault Dam — Rehabilitation Work (Moved to 2026/2027)

Geotechnical and Hydrogeology study complete in 2023. 2024 preliminary engineering
determined most economically viable solution to address undersized spillway/overtop
potential. 2025 work includes detailed design work, regulatory submissions, and (pending
regulatory approval and grant funding), tender/construction

0 Design kicked off Jan 8. Anticipated schedule:
o Begin regulatory submissions mid March, 2025 (pending grant release)
o Design completion mid April — June 2025
o Timing of further works dependant on grant timing and regulatory approval timing
0 Design, specifications, and costed estimate received Jun. 23. Reviewed and discussed
Jun. 25", Awaiting further comment/action on tightening estimate
0 Grant funding stream released with round 1 funding deadline of Jul. 8-Aug. 19, passed.
2" call due Oct. 9, 2025
o Requested pre-application form Jun. 17®. Meeting held with funder Jun. 25%.
Indicated project total must be under $1M to be funding eligible
o Unable to achieve project total under $1M, disqualifying project from funding
0 Council gave direction Aug 26th to revisit alongside drought funding options in 2026
Capital budget discussions

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 7 of 12



e Southfork Hill Road

Emergent investigatory and repair work for the Southfork Hill slide issues

0
0]

Geotechnical scope awarded and complete. Final geotech. report received Dec 91
STIP application submitted Nov. 28", 2024 with letters of support from Campground
and nearby farming operation. Revision submitted Dec. 19" with additional letter of
support from MLA and final geotech. report

o Response received June 2™, 2025: Unsuccessful
Project paused pending further deterioration or future grant opportunities. No capital
spend planned for 2025

Studies and Planning Work

Regional Drought Strategic Implementation Strategy & Raw Water Storage Project

o

(0}

Grant application for a Drought Projects Assessment under DFPP
o Approval received to cover up to 70% of costs
Grant application for 3 month (25-year) forecasted volumes
o Approval received for $3.4M project, up to 75% of costs. Signed and sent to ATEC
o ATEC has confirmed stacking of AMMWP Raw Water Storage grant funds
acceptable for the Drought Projects Assessment (Phase 2)
Forecasted demand and water requirement scenarios presented to Council June 10%
Draft water resource assessment received Aug. 8", comments sent back Aug. 12
Received draft land siting and design criteria to approach stakeholders. One (1) of three
(3) initially planned stakeholders approached. Discussions ongoing

Transportation Master Plan

$200,000 grant received from ACP to complete a Transportation Master Plan, consisting
of a paved, gravel road condition assessment, culvert (non Bridge File) condition
assessment, gravel pit analysis, airport runway assessment

O O0O0o

Awarded August, 2024
Gravel pit report complete
Maycroft Road draft prelim. assessment received May 26"
Gravel road assessment field work complete. Culvert assessment field work complete,
paved road assessment underway. Draft report received
o Gravel road assessments 80% complete
o Culvert arterial road assessments complete, GPS locating remaining culverts
Airport load assessment work complete, data imports issue resolved. Draft report
received and reviewed (May 7th), final report received May 25%
o Concerns identified regarding Spring loading of taxiway, apron, and runway with
the Lockheed L-188 Electra. Concerns discussed with Alberta Forestry June 4
o Working with MPE to cost out additional assessment to define max. loading
requirement of taxiway, Summer loading capability, etc.
Draft TMP report received Jul. 21, significant amount of comments on new sections of
report. Internal comments to be sent back to MPE prior to Sep. 9" Council meeting

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 8 of 12



o Received comments back and path forward plan Sep. 10™. Internal discussions
ongoing prior to approval of remaining work

Cridland Dam

Geotechnical work as recommended in 2021 Dam Safety Review due to observed seepage
and unknown soil properties

0 Site visit complete Apr. 1%, costed plan received Apr. 251
O Additional historic data located including geotechnical work from 1995, details on dam
closure in the 90s, and rehabilitation work
0 Dam Safety Alberta emailed us Apr. 23", requesting an update on the status of our
high/medium priority Dam Safety Review (DSR) findings
o Some gaps were identified in what we have tackled to date, Dam Safety Alberta
seemed accepting with our overall progress to date
o Upcoming provincial audit this year on Cridland Dam. Request received for audit
in October, aligning dates
0 Geotechnical analysis and spillways survey work kicked off with MPE May 16™, 2025
o Geotechnical work complete June 4"/5". Well observations ongoing
0 Draft report for spillway discussed Jul. 22", Revised draft received Sep 25", comments
sent back for review Oct 8. Geotechnical report discussed Jul. 30™. Final copy received
Aug. 27%
o Initial results indicate spillway requires some (relatively minor) earthworks and
spillway culverts are undersized
o Confirmed observed dam face seepage coming from reservoir. Dam face does not
meet long term Factor of Safety (FoS) requirements
0 At minimum, recommendation is quarterly monitoring of seepage

Miscellaneous

o 10 yr. bridge study update kicked off Jan. 27", 2025 with Roseke. Data entry complete
o Estimate October completion

Operations Updates

WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE PLAN

Imilemented Stai;e: Staie 1 (Juli. 15‘hi

RESERVOIR LEVEL RISK 1.5 Score

WATER AVAILABILITY RISK 8.3 Score

FAILURE RISK 0.0 Score

SUPPLY/DEMAND RISK CALCULATION 4.2 Score
TOTAL 14.0 Score

WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE PLAN TOTAL RISK SCORING & RECOMMENDED STAGE

SCORE: 14.0

RECOMMENDED STAGE: [ Warning or Stage 1 ]

a 12 2 4 5B B 7 & 910 f 12 13 14 16 16 17 18 13 20 21 22 23 24 26 26 27 28 29 20 3132333435383?383940_

NORMAL STAGE 1 STAGE 3
WARNING STAGE 2

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 9 of 12



0 Reservoir levels are declining at a less severe pace
0 Demand has dropped since last Council update
o Average 48 hr. demand: 269 m?/d 396-m*/d
o Average 7 day demand: 325 m’/d 412-m’/d
0 AsofOct. 6™ Alberta WIOB indicating end of season (Oct. 9™ level of 1106.5m (1106-
1108m previously predicted)
o Level may drop a bit after irrigation season, but pace of drop will rapidly level out
0 Original intakes remain available (2.9m 53w of water over intakes)
0 Working on plans to access intakes if levels drop below flanges. Potential to access via
ice may be a possibility for pressure testing

Reservoir & Snowpack Tracking

Reservoir Volume Oct. 6: 54.9% Sep274:62.6%

Beaver Mines Lot Servicing
e 47/66 developed applications received, 46 approved, 43 connected (65%)
o0 Fifteen (15) undeveloped fully serviced locations, One (1) exempt with conditions (no
plumbing exists)

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 10 of 12



Standpipes

Last known issue: Jul. 11" (control line sedimentation/solenoid reaction issue at PC
standpipe). Resolved Jul. 14"

General Water Operations Updates October 6%, 2025:

Aerators being pulled from Lundbreck Lagoon prior to Council
Lundbreck Lagoon release planned for week of Oct. 13
Sewer blockage cleared week of Oct. 1% in Lundbreck
Pressure washing floc tanks and wet well
Running with reduced staffing since Sep. 26
Working on operational budgetary preparations
Waste pond gate valve not sealing properly. Costing out repairs
Plant health check awarded for main treatment trains, planned for October 20"
WWTP heat trace trip on one lateral failed. Issue resolved, caused corrosion in panel.
Costing out fix
Working on solution for new emergency ladder for Cowley reservoir. Old ladder
removed due to high hazard
Utility Services Guidelines Update for Lundbreck and Rural Users drafted, backdraft of
typical drawings and review by MPE complete and received Aug. 26
Lundbreck/Cowley reservoir inspections & cleaning complete

0 Reviewing options for repair work in Lundbreck Reservoirs B & C in next 1-3 years
Letter sent to Cowley Mar 28" detailing various requests and proposed path forward for
water assets, licenses, and amended operations contract

0 Cowley engaging with legal on proposed path, no response received to date
Lundbreck Lagoon sludge survey complete. In depth report review complete Apr. 30"

DATE: October 14™, 2025 Page 11 of 12



O Reviewing history of dredging/surveys prior to providing long term
recommendations

General Energy Related Updates October 7%, 2025:
0 QUEST net zero accelerator
0 Economic impacts of Energy & Emissions Plan received

0 Clean Energy Improvement Program
= Active (estimated/approved) and completed projects: 14 ($380,355)

e 6 MD ($187,534)
= 3 completed projects ($55,428.96)
e 1MD ($11,835)

Recommendation:
That the Utilities & Infrastructure report for September 4" — October 8" is received as

information.

Prepared by: David Desabrais Date: October 8, 2025

Council Meeting Date: October 14", 2025

DATE: October 14t 2025 Page 12 of 12



G3a



Recommendation to Council

In 2023, the MD received a request from landowner Mike and Sheila Pratchler to purchase a portion of
abandoned Road Plan No. 1835 HX (the Road) within their parcel (4dftachment No. 1).

This request was brought to Council at the December 2024 meeting. At that meeting Council granted that
applicant’s request.

The Utility ROW required from Telus Communications has been received and no other ROW’s are
required.

The road closure resolution has been prepared and is being presented to Council for approval (Attachment
No. 2).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
None

Presented to: Council Page 2 of 3
Date of Meeting: October 9, 2025










MD of Pincher Creek

A Resolution of the MD of Pincher Creek for the purpose of closing to public travel and cancelling
a public highway in accordance with Section 24 of the Municipal Government Act, Chapter M26,

Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, as amended.

WHEREAS, the lands hereafter described are no longer required for public travel,

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved that the Council of the MD of Pincher Creek does hereby close

the following described road, subject to rights of access granted by other legislation.

NE 12-7-3-5

ALL THAT PORTION OF UNCANCELLED ROAD PLAN 1835 HX FORMING PART OF LOT 16, BLOCK
1, PLAN .

CONTAINING 2.509 HECTARES (6.20 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

To be transferred to:

SHEILA CAROL PRATCHLER AND MICHAEL PRATCHLER
BOTH OF: BOX 296

LUNDBRECK, ALBERTA, TOK 1HO

Chief Elected Official

Seal

Chief Administrative Officer

Approved this day of , 20

Minister of Transportation and Economic Corridors



BLOCK L

LN 3810 AL

N.W.1/4 SEC. 12
7-3-5

ﬂl‘s‘ 5

wr 1
BLOCK 1

PN $51 1008

BLOCK 1

PLAN 931 1008

NW.1/4 SEC. 12

7-3-5

§~Z =L~ 3 ¥/I'WN

Refermce

s

7 V8

i

Tha sreox shown on (e plor were devired
wmig calculonrs

SRRy 7]

i

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK No. 9

DESCRIPTIVE PLAN
SHOWING

CONSOLIDATION

OF ALL OF

LOT 15, BLOCK 1, DESCRIPTIVE PLAN 231 0716

AND PART OF

ROAD FLAN 1835H.X.
ALL WITHIN

N.E.1/4 SEC. 12; TWP. 7; RGE. 3; W.5 M.

BY: T.C. PENNER, A.LS.

SCALE  1:2000

orw anoen n matres ang decimal

hereot.

Porton t bm regirtared (x bound In heory bioca fiws o cortoim 38.00 e
Mo 1irid Inspection was corried cut and bourdoies hove ot bwem
wricoiared on the GO

oy
Propared In oecordanes with Section BO{3)(b) of Uhe Lond Tites AcL

rofarence e derired from Pron 231 0713
Ume froen N1/4 Swe. 12-7-3-3 to NE1/4 Sec. 12-7-3-3
Crd bearing ~ I73033°

point shown trun
Coortinale vaim for Ceo—rati

Owe
erance poirt W W& SABZXUSA [ BBASTD

Prms 181 D120, 871 2361, Rood Piow 13X & 231 0715

TABLE OF AREAS
wr e

i Lot 13, Bock 1, Pon 231 0740 = 3319 ha.
wibin Roed Pan TEXRIX = 251 ba

SEC. 12 ~ 7 -~ 3 -5

ol = YE% o

SURVEYOR

REGISTRAR
LaND TIMLES OFRICE

PLAN NO.

ENTERED AND RIRSTERTD

Ll

PETRUMINT NO

ADRCESTRAR

NAME : T.C. PENNER. ALS.
DATED: MARCH Sth, 2025

REGISTERED OWNER

SHEILA CARDI, PRATCHLER
MICHAEL PRATCHLER

DRAWING FILE : 24— 15542.0%G

CLENT : MIKE & SHELA PRATCHLER
FUE NO. : 24-18542

B8 (8.0 sgft)




G3b



Recommendation to Council

As part of the feasibility analysis and business plan, quotes have been received to conduct the
design and analysis necessary to make a shovel ready project. These tasks include;

- Geotechnical testing and lidar measurements ($80,000)

- Electrical modelling and Fortis interconnection analysis ($120,000)

- Environmental site review ($10,000)

- Climate risk assessment ($5,000)

- Offtake agreement negotiation ($5,000)

Note: Application to NRED & GMF does not require the MD to proceed with the project. If only
one or both of the grants are received, Council has the option to not proceed with the project.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

Should both applications be accepted be the financial cost will be $0 for the Municipality.
Should just the NRED be accepted and the project given approval to proceed the cost will be
$110,000. Should just the GMF be accepted, the cost to proceed will be $44,000.

Presented to: Council Page 2 of 2
Date of Meeting: October 14, 2025




November 30, 2024

Municipal District of Pincher Creek
Renewable Energy Conversion Study

Final Report

Prepared by:

Tristan Walker

(250) 613-8113
Tristan@MassifEnergy.ca



mailto:Tristan@MassifEnergy.ca

MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Executive Summary

The Municipal District of Pincher Creek (MD) is historically known as the birthplace of the wind
industry in Canada due to their early adoption of wind turbine technology that has accelerated over
the past twenty-five years. With a mature industry and significant infrastructure in place, concerns
have been raised around the effective management of further renewable energy development. The
MD contracted Massif Energy to review the existing renewable energy conversion (REC)
infrastructure in the region and their impact on the tax base, the bylaws guiding development
regulations and opportunities forimprovement, and conduct community consultation to
understand the perspective of local residents on future renewable energy projects.

Existing infrastructure includes 255 wind turbines over 9 wind farms for a total capacity of 511 MW,
1 hydro dam, and one battery. There are 16 substations in the region and 18 transmission lines with
Voltages ranging from 69 kV to 500 kV. The tax income from these projects is estimated at $4.6
million in 2023 or 33% of municipal revenue, progressively decreasing as projects age and
decommission until revenues hit 0 by 2050 based on the provided depreciation tables.

The MD Land Use Bylaw was reviewed and compared to other bylaws in Alberta from 7 similar
jurisdictions, with some options for improvement identified. These improvements lie primarily in
the restrictions and requirements around preferred land areas for development, reclamation and
security and process, and consultation requirements with community and Municipal government.

Consultation was done through a community open house and survey using the findings of the study
as a basis for discussion. A total of 20 people attended the open house and the survey garnered 87
responses. Based on what was heard, the community has concerns over the amount of wind
turbines that currently exist, and would prefer minimal new development in favour of redeveloping
existing sites or brownfield sites near existing transmission infrastructure to maintain the tax
income and local jobs. It was also noted that preference would be for early consultation with
developers before any site has been selected, and to use the Municipal land Use Suitability Tool
(MLUST) which the MD commissioned in 2018 as a basis for identifying suitable locations for
development. Finally, the community noted a strong preference for a new approach to community
benefit for projects that provided cheaper energy on resident’s energy bills.

Page 2 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Contents
EXECULIVE SUMIMANY ..ccuuiiiiiiii i e e e et e e e e eas 2
FigUres and TabLeS ... cee ittt et et et et et e e e e e e eens 4
T goTa 1¥ et o] o NP PSR P PRSPPI 6
Current Renewable ENergy INfrastrUCTUIE .....u.eiiiiiiieriiiiier et eetiie s eeteie s s eeveies s eereieseenannseennnnnnsens 7
TransmisSION INFraSTrUCTUIE ...c..ieiiie ettt e eens 8
SUDSTAtioN INFrASTIUCTUIE .euuiiiieii ettt e e s et e eene s etaaeeeene s eenanenen 9
TranSMUISSION LINES ..iiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt sttt et e ran s et s e taaseanesennnsenes 10
o] oo 1=Te l ol fo] [=To1 £ NSRRIt 12
Renewable ENergy Tax EStIMAtes c...iuuuriiiue ittt ieiie et eetie e eteieeetisetaieeetansetanneesnnsessnssensnsersnnsennns 14
ASSESSMENTVAIUE ..cceuiiiiiiiiiiiii et ettt s e e et e ean s eanaeeas 14
TaXationN PrOJECTIONS «ouuiiiiii ittt ettt et et et et e e eaeeaeeaeren st sensensansanssnssensensensensensanns 18
BYLAW REVIEW ... ittt ettt ettt et ettt et et et st e e eaeaaeeaesansensansansansanssensensensensensennens 24
Municipal District Of PINChEr Cre@k ... ..ottt e et re s e enns 24
Municipal DiStriCt Of WIllOW CrEK....uiuuiiuiiiiiiiiie ittt ie ettt e esee e eaesansansansanesnaanns 25
MUNICIPAL DISTIHCT Of TADET «.vniiniiiiiiii et e e e e e s e e easansansansansanaanns 25
[Oe T8 1o} 8V Ao Xl 2= 11 01 (=T = o d o T 26
RS0 ] - PR 27
Solar Development in AlDEITA ...u. ittt e e e e e e et e ae e e easa e e e e aaas 27
Project Lifespan and MaintenanCe ... ...iuuiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt eee s st s e sasansanaaans 27
[ o Yol a{=To [N ]1 (=10 =] o L€ TRt 27
RegULAtOrY OVEISIGNT. . e ittt s e e eeeseesen st sensensanssnnsansensensensenns 28
Municipal District Pincher Creek LUB SOLlar rEVIEW .....c.cvinieiiiiii ittt eeees 28
Municipal District of Willow Creek LUB SOLar reVIEW .......ccuviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e saee e e eans 28
DITfEIENCES . ieeiiiiiii ettt et et et et et et e e e e e e e e eaas 28
Municipal District of Taber LUB SOLar rEVIEW....c..ivuiiniiniiiieie ettt ree e eneeesensansensaneanns 29
DIffEIBNCES ..t iiiiiiiiii i ettt e e s era e eas 29
County of Paintearth LUB SOLar FEVIEW .....c.iuiiiiiiiiiiii ittt et et e ts e enenneanennsensensennas 30
DITfEIENCES . ieeiiiiiii ettt et et et et et et e e e e e e e e eaas 30
L4713 e TP PSUTRR P PPPPPINN 33
Wind Energy Development in ALDEITa ....c.vvuiieiiiiiiii et ee st e e e enenesnnsansaneanns 33

Page 3 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Project Lifespan and MaintenanCe ... ...ivu ittt s e s eaesansansansanannns 33
=] o Yol a{=To [T (=10 =T o L6 T T PP OPP PP PPRPRRt 34
ReZULATONY OVEISISNT..eue i ettt e et s et e e e s eteaeeenesennaneeen 34

MD Pincher Creek LUB WING FEVIEW .......iviuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciin ittt et cean v eeanes 34
MD Willow Creek LUB WiNd FEVIEW.....c..uiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt et et etei s eta s eransennes 35
D31 (=T =T T T PSPPI 35

MD Taber LUB WING FEVIEW .....cuuiiiiiiiiiiei ittt st s e st st st s ea s ea s ennsanese 38
D) (=T (T g et T PP 39
County of Paintearth LUB WINA FEVIEW .....cuiiuiiiiiiiiii sttt e ee e e eaesasansanaaaaas 40
D11 (=T =T o S PP PPRPPPN 40
BYLawW REVIEW SUMIMIAIY ..ttt ettt st et e e e ee et et st sansansansanssnssnesessessensensanssnsenernns 42
Bylaw RECOMMENAALIONS ..eiiiniiiiiiiiie ettt et et et et e e s e eneeesansensensansanaanns 42
ComMMUNILY CONSULATION c.eniniiiii ittt et et et et e e eaeee et sensansensensannsnnsensensensensenns 44
SETUCTUIE ettt ettt et et et e et s e taae e etae s etane e eanesetnnseaanesennnserenesennnsas 44
RESULES ettt et ettt et et et et e s et e ra s et e ran e eanes 44
D Yol U 1] o] o BT PPPPPPPPPPRPRE 50
(0] o] LU 13 (o] o PN 51
Y o 0 1= o | 5= AN 53

Figures and Tables

Figure 1: Map of current electricity generation facilities in the MD of Pincher Creek...........ccccceuunnneee... 7
Figure 2: Map of transmission infrastructure within the MD of Pincher Creek .........cccceeuuiiiiiiiiiiiienennen. 9
Figure 3: Location of proposed projects within the MD of Pincher Creek; Sunrise Solar and Oldman

(oL 11 0] oY PSPPSRI 12
Figure 4: Wind asset depreciation table provided by MD ASSESSON. ......cvieiiruerieriinnreeiiiiereereneneerennens 14
Figure 5: Municipal Revenue from renewable energy and other SOUrCes ........cccevveviiviiieienieniennennnn. 21
Figure 6: Estimated historic and projected tax revenue from renewable energy assets in the MD of
1] g1 G @] =T PR 22
Figure 7. Diagram from the MDWC LUB depicting a typical WECS........c.ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeececeeee, 38
Figure 8. Graph showing public responses regarding support of wind development in the MD of
PINCRET CrEEK. et ettt et et et et et et et seaseaneeasensaensenssensannsanns 45
Figure 9. Graph showing public responses regarding support of solar development in the MD of
Tl o] g1 G O] =T PP 45
Figure 10. Graph showing public responses regarding the opinion of wind turbines in the MD of
1] g1 GO T PP 46

Page 4 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 11. Graph showing public responses regarding the redevelopment of existing sites. ........... 46
Figure 12. Graph depicting public responses regarding developments on brownfield sites. The full
question reads “What is your preference regarding development on brownfield sites (like old gravel

pits, oil wells, etc.) to increase value and support reclamation?” .......ccceeveiiiiiiiriiineeireiieeie e eeeen 47
Figure 13. Graph illustrating public responses on the anticipated stage of development for
COMMUNITY ENBAZEIMENT. ceu ittt ittt e ettt teeteeteettensrnstnstnstussussessessenstnstnstnsssssessessensensanernns 47

Figure 14. Graph illustrating responses concerning the importance of MLUST and Public opinion
when making development decisions. “What is your preference regarding the use of the MLUST
conflict maps to guide preferred development zones and restricted zones in the MD of Pincher

Creek Land Use Bylaw?” ... ettt et s et e et s et e et e ee s eensaensaaneaansaensaensennsannsennenns 48
Figure 15. Graph depicting public opinion on the preferred method of community benefit from
renewable energy deVELOPMENTS. ...ttt ettt e et et et et et senseneneeneeansensensensannens 48

Figure 16. Concerns addressed in future development plans, ranked from 1 (highest concern)to 5
(lowest concern). The full question reads “What is your preference regarding the use of the MLUST
conflict maps to guide preferred development zones and restricted zones in the MD of Pincher
Creek Land Use Bylaw ?” .. .ou ittt ee e e et et et s e st s et e asansansansansanssnssnssnsensensansnnennns 49
Figure 17. Detailed breakdown of the ranking of each concern. ......cccccciviiiiiiiiiiiiinin e, 49
Figure 18. Summary of considered priorities ranked from 1 (highest concern) to 5 (lowest concern).
The full question reads “Rank your priorities for guiding our future construction and redevelopment
efforts for renewable energy sites in the MD of Pincher Creek, with 1 being your top priority and 5

DEING YOUTI LOWEST PIIOIITY. .. ittt ettt ettt et et et et eaaeeeassenseenaenssensaensennssenssnnanns 50
Figure 12. Detailed breakdown of the ranking of each priority. ....cceeeeeeiiieiiiiiiiiiieireee e, 50
Table 1: Existing generation statistics in the MD of Pincher Creek.........covvviiiieiiiiiiioniiiiiiinieeiiceeeeeenaen, 8
Table 2: Substation voltage and generation hosting capacity within the MD of Pincher Creek ............ 10
Table 3: Transmission Line circuit voltage and generation hosting capacity within the MD of Pincher
(€T PSR U STPUPRPPPRPPRt 11
Table 4: Generator connection application process description ........cceueevveveeierreeiiiiereeiinieneereeeeeeenens 13
Table 5: Proposed generation project statistics in the MD of Pincher Creek\.......cccueeviiiiiieniiiiininnnnnn. 13
Table 6: Municipal District of Pincher Creek 2024 Linear Industrial Property Tax Rate .........ccceueuveeeee. 14
Table 7: Wind farm companies in the Municipal District of Pincher Creek .......ccccovevviviiviiiiiiniinnnnnnn. 15
Table 8: Assessee hame and associated wind farm assetS....ccoevviiiiiiii i, 16
Table 9: Canadian Hydro Developers TransAlta 2023 valuation of wind farm assets in the MD of
PINCIRET CrEEK ettt et et et e et e e et e e saaeansensensaeneenssensannneens 17
Table 10: Enel, Enmax, and Ikea wind farm 2023 valuations in the MD of Pincher Creek................. 18
Table 11: 2023 and original valuations of wind farms in the MD of Pincher CreekK.........ccccccevneennenn.n. 19
Table 12: 2023 estimated tax income from wind farms in the MD of Pincher Creek.........cc..c........... 20
Table 13: Municipal Land use bylaw reVIieW LEVEL........cuuvvniiiiiiiiiiiie e ceeeeeeeen e e ens 24

Page 5 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Introduction

The Municipal District of Pincher Creek (MD) has contracted Massif Energy to conduct a review of the
renewable energy conversion systems (RECs) within the MD, and the Land Use Bylaw (LUB) in relation
to renewable energy development projects for the purpose of identifying opportunities to integrate
future regulations around development. This review includes community consultation in the form of an
open house and survey. A meeting was held on June 26, 2024 with MD and Old Man River Regional
Services Commission staff to discuss scope and timeline for the project.

The analysis of existing infrastructure involved the density of RECs and capacity available on the
transmission lines within the MD, analysis of existing applications for new generation, review of current
Municipal and Provincial Policy, evaluation of tax income from RECs, and community sentiment
towards RECs. The open house held on October 16, 2024 aimed to foster an inclusive space for
residents to discuss the potential benefits, challenges, and community impacts of renewable
energy projects. Through several informational, participants gained insight into the types of
renewable technologies under consideration, such as wind, solar, and energy storage systems. The
accompanying survey was conducted to gather detailed community feedback on renewable energy
topics, allowing residents to voice their perspectives on aspects such as site selection,
environmental concerns, economic benefits, and long-term sustainability.

This report provides an overview of the findings of the study and recommendations for future
improvements to the LUB. The report is broken down into sections for each stage starting with the
review of existing infrastructure, tax estimates, bylaw review, and ending with the results of the
community consultation.

Page 6 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Current Renewable Energy Infrastructure

The following section provides an overview of the existing utility scale Renewable Energy Conversion
Systems located within the MD. The location of all energy generation within the MD is shown below in
Figure 1 downloaded from the Alberta Electric Systems Operator (AESO)" .

Figure 1: Map of current electricity generation facilities in the MD of Pincher Creek

The data for each site is retrieved and broken down into generator type, total sites, total generators at
each site, as well as site and generator capacity. Currently, there are nine wind farms with 255 turbines,
one battery storage facility, one natural gas generator and one hydro plant operating within the region
for a total of 559 MW of capacity. The individual statistics of each generator can be seen below in
Table 1.

T‘Connection Project Reporting » AESO’ <https://www.aeso.ca/grid/transmission-projects/connection-
project-reporting/>accessed 30 July 2024.

Page 7 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 1: Existing generation statistics in the MD of Pincher Creek

Site Name Commissioning Date Site Capacity Generator capacity Total Generators

Cowley Ridge 2001 20 MW 1.3 MW 15
Castle River #1 2001 39 MW 660 kW 60
Castle Rock 2012 77 MW 2.3 MW 33
Castle Rock 2 2020 29 MW 4.2 MW 7
Riverview 2020 105 MW 4.2 MW 25
Wind Oldman 2 2014 46 MW 2.3 MW 20
Kettles Hill 2006 63 MW 1.8 MW 35
Summerview 1 2004 66 MW 1.8 MW 38
Summerview 2 2010 66 MW 3 MW 22
Total Wind - 511 MW - 255
Batteries Summerview 2020 10 MW/20 MWh 10 MW/20 MWh 1
Drywood 2020 6 MW 1.475 MW 4
Oldman River 2002 32 MW 16 MW 2

- - 559 MW - 262

The transmission infrastructure within the MD that enables the connection of these existing
generators, and future generator connections to the grid is analysed in the next section.

Transmission Infrastructure

Within the MD of Pincher Creek there are several transmission lines ranging from 69 kV to 500 kV.
These transmission lines enable addition of large loads, or the offtake of energy generation. For the
purpose of this analysis, the published capacity from the AESO? for generation hosting on lines within
the MD is analysed. The map of transmission line infrastructure including lines and substations is
shown below in Figure 2. There are 16 substations within the MD, six 69 kV circuits represented in
purple, nine 138 kV circuits in green, five 240 kV circuits in red, and one 500 kV circuit in blue. While

2 “Transmission Capability Map » AESO’ <https://www.aeso.ca/grid/connecting-to-the-grid/transmission-
capability-map/> accessed 30 July 2024.

Page 8 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

this map is published by the AESO it uses approximated and estimated values to provide indicative
results. For exact capacity at any location, it is recommended to conduct an interconnection study.

Figure 2: Map of transmission infrastructure within the MD of Pincher Creek

The interconnection capacity is calculated for each line at the substations it connects to. The total

generation hosting capacity approaches the reported value as the distance to the substation
decreases.

Substation Infrastructure

The hosting values for each substation are displayed below in Table 2. There are four substations with
multiple voltage levels, while the remainder are isolated to a single transmission voltage. Goose lake,
Castle Rock Ridge, and Fidler substations have the most hosting capacity at over 350 MW respectively.

Page 9 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 2: Substation voltage and generation hosting capacity within the MD of Pincher Creek

Substation Bus Voltage Hosting Capacity

Lundbreck 513S Bus 347 69 kV 7 MW
Cowley Ridge 322S Bus 264 69 kV 7 MW
Bus 223 69kV 54 MW
Pincher Creek 396S
Bus 224 138 kV 153 MW
Russell 632S Bus 656 138 kV 154 MW
Castle River 239S Bus 234 138 kV 72 MW
Castle Rock Ridge 205S Bus 221 240 kv 355 MW
Bus 346 240 kv 354 MW
Goose Lake 103S
Bus 296 138 kV 330 MW
Shell Waterton 502S Bus 231 69 kv 45 MW
Waterton 379S Bus 227 69 kV 66 MW
Bus 233 138 kV 116 MW
Drywood 415S
Bus 226 69kV 74 MW
Rangeland Yarrow 995S Bus 228 69 kv 24 MW
Oldman River 806S Bus 230 138 kV 65 MW
Windy Point 112S Bus 543 138 kV 65 MW
Summerview 354S Bus 336 138 kV 17 MW
Bus 751 240 kv 356 MW
Fidler 312S
Bus 752 138 kV 214 MW
Kettle's Hill 383S Bus 402 138 kV 113 MW

Each circuit connects to one of the substations listed above. The following section will provide an
overview of the transmission line circuits where generation projects can be connected through a T-tap
or directly at a substation.

Transmission Lines

The following section displays each transmission circuit within the MD and the hosting capacity
available at each substation connection point. Each circuit is recorded and shown below along with its
substation connections and range of interconnection capabilities in Table 3. For circuits that have a
different hosting capacity at each substation, the values are displayed in the order of substations
identified within the row equivalent to that circuit. There is no data available for the 500 kV circuit or
the 138 kV 893L from Goose Lake to Oldman River substations therefore those are not included.

Page 10 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 3: Transmission Line circuit voltage and generation hosting capacity within the MD of Pincher Creek

Substations Voltage Hosting Capacity

Lundbreck 513s
Cowley Ridge 322s 69 kV 7 MW
Pincher Creek 396S
Pincher Creek 396S
Waterton 379S 69 kv 46-48 MW
Waterton 379S
Shell Waterton 5025 69kv 45 MW
Waterton 379S
Drywood 4155 69 kv 65/49 MW
Drywood 415S
Rangeland Yarrow 9955 69 kv 24 MW
Glenwood 229S
Drywood 4155 69 kv 28/36 MW
Goose Lake 103S
Drywood 4155 138 kv 99/116 MW
Coleman 799S
Russell 632S 138 kv 156/154 MW
Pincher Creek 396S
Russell 6325 138 kv 153/154 MW
Goose Lake 103S
Pincher Creek 3965 138 kv 116/153 MW
Peigan 595
Goose Lake 103S 138 kv 98/141/113 MW

Kettle's Hill 383S

Oldman River 806S
Fidler 312S 138 kV 65/93/65 MW
Windy Point 112S

Fidler 312S
Summerview 354S 138 kv 17 MW
Castle Rock Ridge 205S
Fidler 3125 240kv 355/356 MW
Goose Lake 103S
Castle Rock Ridge 205S 240kv 354/355 MW
Goose Lake 103S
Fidler 3125 240 kv 354/356 MW
Goose Lake 103S
Peigan 595 240 kv 354/350 MW
Goosg Lake 103S 240 KV 354/350 MW
Peigan 595

Page 11 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

With the capacity noted above there are two projects proposed to the Alberta Utilities Commission
(AUC) for construction which will be presented in the next section.

Proposed Projects

According to the AESO connection list® there are currently two projects that have applied for AUC
approval that are shown below in Figure 3. The first project is a battery storage facility at the Oldman
River currently, the second is the Sunrise Solar project Northwest of the Town of Pincher Creek. The
Sunrise Solar project has been withdrawn as of November 30, 2024.

Oldman River Battery

Sunrise Solar

Figure 3: Location of proposed projects within the MD of Pincher Creek; Sunrise Solar and Oldman battery

The Battery project is at stage two of the AUC application process, and the Sunrise solar project is at
stage three however has now been withdrawn as of November 30, 2024. The six stages of AUC
application process* are shown below in Table 4 and range from application through the permitting
process and finally to closeout.

3 ‘Connection Project Reporting » AESO’ (n 1).
4‘Connection Process » AESO’ <https://www.aeso.ca/grid/connecting-to-the-grid/connection-process/>
accessed 31 July 2024.

Page 12 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 4: Generator connection application process description

Description Timeline

Application: Submit a request for a new project to the 2 weeks
AESO
Scope: Develop project plan and scope submission. 8 weeks
Assessment: Engineering studies for connection, cost and

. . . 14 weeks
design along with land use evaluation.
Regulatory Preparation: Develop filing application to the 32 weeks
AUC.
AUC Application: Submission of application to the AUC N/A
and review
Construction: Construction of transmission facilities and N/A
preparation for energization
Close out: Commissioning and final reporting N/A

The proposed project statistics are shown below in Table 5. The Sunrise Solar project is expecting to
energize a total of 75 MW in December 2026 pending successful applications. The Oldman River
Battery is behind the fence of an existing generating facility and expects to be completed by July 2026
pending successful application.

Table 5: Proposed generation project statistics in the MD of Pincher Creek\

. . Expected
Project Size Stage

completion date

Oldman River Battery 23 MW 2 July 2026

The municipal responsibilities and regulations for the approval process will be reviewed in future
reports as indicated in the following next steps section.

Page 13 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Renewable Energy Tax Estimates

The inputs and factors used for the purpose of this analysis include the tax rate, depreciation table, and
the Linear property Assessments. The tax rate shown in Table 6 was found under the “Non-Residential,
Linear, Machinery & Equipment & Designated Industrial Property” classification in the 2024 Municipal
District of Pincher Creek taxation Bylaw 1350-24 and assumed to stay constant throughout the entire
analysis.

Table 6: Municipal District of Pincher Creek 2024 Linear Industrial Property Tax Rate

10.4890

The depreciation table used in the assessment process for wind assets was provided under
confidentiality by the MD Assessor and is shown in Figure 4 below. The factors presented in this table
are used to develop the assessed value of the wind assets based on their original value and age of the
infrastructure. As noted, there is an immediate reduction in assessment value to 75%, and then a
steady decrease until year 24 where the asset is considered valued at 20% of original until it is
removed.

Figure 4: Wind asset depreciation table provided by MD Assessor.

The valuation of each renewable energy asset in the Municipal District was found in the publicly
available Linear Tax Assessment Roll. Process and results are detailed further in the next section.

Assessment Value

The assessment value of energy generation infrastructure is found under the Linear Assessment Tax
Roll. The Municipal District of Pincher Creek publishes this database each year on its website. For
the purpose of this analysis, the most recent Linear Tax Assessment report from the 2023
Assessment Year was used. Based on the analysis provided in the Progress report submitted to the
MD on July 31, 2024 there are nine wind farms with a total of 255 turbines within the MD. Additional
electrical generation assets include the Windcharger battery facility, the Drywood natural gas

Page 14 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

generator, and The Oldman River Hydro facility. This analysis considers only the wind assets as
depreciation tables were not available for the other infrastructure classes.

The nine wind farms are owned by four separate companies; Enel Green Power, Enmax, lkea, and
TransAlta. The owners and their corresponding wind farms are shown below in Table 7.

Table 7: Wind farm companies in the Municipal District of Pincher Creek

Castle Rock 1
Castle Rock 2
Riverview
Oldman 2
Kettles Hill
Castle River

Cowley Ridge

Transalta

Summerview 1

Summerview 2

To identify the individual assessments, the tax roll was filtered into the “EPG- Electric Power
Generation” classification. The Assessees under this category are shown below in Table 8, along
with their assumed wind generation assets. This analysis does not include the Sinott farm, Robert
Reid, or 2183270 Alberta Ltd, which are assumed to be privately owned assets with limited data
available. The Bow Ark facility and the Hydro facility owned by ATCO were also not included as they
do not own wind farm assets.

Page 15 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 8: Assessee name and associated wind farm assets

Assessee Assets

ATCO Power Ltd Attn Property Tax West
Building
200-5302 FORAND ST SW
CALGARY, AB T3E 8B4
ENMAX Kettles Hill Inc.

c/o Enmax Energy Corporation 141 50 AVE SE
Canadian Hydro Developers Inc.
TransAlta Place c/o TRANSALTA

1400-1100 1 ST SE
CALGARY, AB T2G 1B1
Castle Rock Ridge Limited Partnership
c/o Enel Green Power NorthAmerica
300-100 BRICKSTONE SQ
ANDOVER, MA 01810 US
Sinnott Farm Services PO BOX 426
PINCHER CREEK, AB TOK 1WO0
BowArk Energy Ltd. Devon Tower
3405-400 3 AVE SW
Enel Alberta Wind Inc.

c/o Enel Green Power North America Inc.
300-100 Brickstone Square
Andover, MA 01810 US
Riverview Limited Partnership c/o Enel Green
Power North America Inc.

300-100 Brickstone Sq
Andover, MA 01810 US
Oldman 2 Wind Farm Ltd. ATTN: Mark Menjak
1065 PLAINS RD E

2183270 Alberta Ltd.
59430 HWY 831 RR 1 WASKATENAU, AB TOA
3P0

Robert F. Reid Robert F. Reid PO BOX 29

Cowley Ridge Wind Power Inc.
TransAlta Place c/o TRANSALTA
1400-1100 1 ST SE
CALGARY, AB T2G 1B1

N/A

Kettles Hill Wind Farm

Castle River Wind Farm
Summerview 1 Wind Farm
Summerview 2 Wind Farm

Castle Rock Wind Farm

N/A

N/A

Castle Rock 2 Wind Farm

Riverview Wind Farm

Oldman 2 Wind Farm

N/A

N/A

Cowley Ridge Wind Farm

Within each Assessee title, the assets and their equivalent assessment value were analyzed to
determine the total valuation of each wind farm. For Assessees with multiple wind farms, namely
TransAlta, the assessment values were analyzed to match the number of wind turbine assets within
each wind farm.

This was done for the three separate TransAlta wind farms owned under the Canadian Hydro
Developers moniker, the results of which are shown below in Table 9. Based on data from the
TransAlta website the Castle River wind farm started with one V44 turbine and installed 59 total V47
turbines in the following years from June 2000 to July 2021 [3]. Within the data set there is one unit
valued at $208,170 which is assumed to be the V44 installed first. There are an additional 15 units
valued at $231,890 and 44 units valued at $256,650 which is assumed to make up the phased

Page 16 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

installation of the remaining V47 turbines. The total value of the windfarm was then estimated to be
$14,979,120. The Summerview 1 wind farm has 38 V80 turbines. Within the dataset there are 37
assets valued at $1,297,660. It is assumed a final turbine was brought online in a subsequent year
and is valued at $1,443,950. This asset was selected due to its location within the 8" Township land
description indicating proximity to other assets within the Summerview 1 windfarm. Summerview 2
has 22 total turbines [5]. Under the Canadian Hydro Developers Classifications there are 22 assets
valued at $2,803,140, therefore it is assumed these are the turbines within the Summerview 2 wind
farm and the wind farm’s total valuation is $61,669,080.

Table 9: Canadian Hydro Developers TransAlta 2023 valuation of wind farm assets in the MD of Pincher Creek

1xV44 @ $208,170
Castle River 15xV47 @ $231,890 $14,979,120
44 x V44 @ $256,650

37xV80 @ $1,297,660

1xV80 @ $1,443,950 $49,457,370

Summerview 1

Summerview 2 22x3MW @ $2,803,140 $61,669,080

$126,105,570

There is a total of $146,576,590 in assets owned by TransAlta, $10,196,450 of which is associated
with the Windcharger battery facility. This leaves an additional $10,274,570 in assessed value
across 8 assets, which is assumed to make up ancillary systems and associated infrastructure.
Valuations of ancillary electrical equipment were not included in the tax income analysis as itis not
possible to accurately determine which asset corresponds to which site.

For Assessees owning only one wind farm, all assets categorized to them were assumed to be part
of that wind farm and the results are shown in Table 10. The Enel wind farms, although all owned by
Enel Green Power were separated into distinct ownership groups which facilitated the
determination of each wind farm’s value. There is an anomaly in the data for the Cowley Ridge Wind
Farm which indicates only one asset despite there being 15 operational Nordex N60 Turbines on the
site. For the purpose of this analysis, the value represented in the assessment roll will be used,
however it should be acknowledged it is likely not reflective of the actual asset valuation for this
wind farm. The Riverview wind farm has the largest valuation, followed closely by the Castle Rock
wind farm which aligns with the size and operational dates of the wind farms in the region.

Page 17 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 10: Enel, Enmax, and lkea wind farm 2023 valuations in the MD of Pincher Creek

Wind Farm

Kettles Hill $58,589,830

Cowley Ridge $11,410

Riverview $99,527,130

Oldman 2 $53,885,640

Castle Rock 1 $80,094,300

Castle Rock 2 $25,308,760

Total $212,014,010

The valuations established through this review are used to determine the tax revenue projections
that will be outlined in the following section.

Taxation projections

Using the valuations estimated from the review of the 2023 Municipal District of Pincher Creek
Linear Tax Assessment Roll, the original valuations of each wind farm were extrapolated using the
age and the depreciation table provided. For example, the Kettles Hill wind farm started operations
in 2006, making it 17 years old and has depreciated to 36% of its initial value. These valuations were
then used to develop a projection of the tax income that will be earned over each respective
lifetime. The valuations at commercial operations date for each wind farm are shown below in Table
11.

Page 18 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 11: 2023 and original valuations of wind farms in the MD of Pincher Creek

Commerc;:t:peratlon 2023 Valuation Initial Valuation
Kettles Hill 2006 $58,589,830 $162,749,527.78

2001 $11,410 $50,043.86
2020 $99,527,130 $132,702,840.00
Oldman 2 2014 $53,885,640 $84,725,849.06
2012 $80,094,300 $143,025,535.71
2020 $25,308,760 $33,745,013.33

Castle River 1997 $14,979,120 $74,895,600.00

Summerview 1 2004 $49,457,370 $163,225,643.56

Summerview 2 2010 $61,669,080 $126,112,638.04

Using the tax rate noted above, the tax received from the wind farms in 2023 was estimated to be
$4,652,108.97, broken down by wind farm in Table 12 below. The bulk of the payments come from
the larger Riverview, Castle Rock, Summerview, and Kettles Hill projects.

Page 19 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Table 12: 2023 estimated tax income from wind farms in the MD of Pincher Creek

2023 Valuation 2023 Tax

$58,589,830 $614,548.73
$11,410 $119.68
$99,527,130 $1,043,940.07
Oldman 2 $53,885,640 $565,206.48
$80,094,300 $840,109.11
$25,308,760 $265,463.58

Castle River $14,979,120 $157,115.99

Summerview 1 $49,457,370 $518,758.35

Summerview 2 $61,669,080 $646,846.98

Comparing this revenue to the total tax base of the MD of Pincher Creek in 2023 of $14,094,850, the
wind farms make up 33% of total municipal tax income. The breakdown is displayed in graphical
format in Figure 5 below. The remaining $9,442,741.03 making up 67% of Municipal revenue is
assumed to come from a combination of residential, farm, commercial, and industrial properties.
The removal of the income from renewable energy generation would require an increase in tax rate
for the remaining assets should equal service levels be desired.

Page 20 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 5: Municipal Revenue from renewable energy and other sources

Using the deprecation table provided and the estimated original infrastructure value at commercial
operation date, the estimated tax revenue from the beginning of the Castle River wind farm to the
closure date of Riverview and Castle Rock 2 are shown below in Figure 6. Each wind farm is
estimated to have an operational lifetime of 30 years, with decommissioning occurring in the 31°
year. There are two notable peaks in 2014 when the Oldman 2 wind farm came online shortly after
Summerview 2 and Castle Rock wind farms, and in 2020 when the Riverview and Castle Rock 2
wind farms came online. Prior to 2014, tax revenue steadily increased with each new wind farm that
came online from $589,000 per year, to $1.8 Million in 2004, $3.0 Million in 2006, and up to $3.9
Million in 2010. Since the peakin 2010 there has been an overall downward trend besides the two
peaks in 2014 and 2020 due to the main asset base of wind farm infrastructure entering the later
years of production and thus depreciating at an accelerated rate. From the peak in 2020, itis
expected that tax revenue from the wind farms will steadily decrease unless there are repowering
activities or new developments. This reduction in income will bring tax revenues down to $3 Million
by 2029, below $2 Million by 2036, and below $1 Million in 2041. It is expected tax revenue will
cease completely in 2050.

Page 21 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

$6,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00
$4,000,000.00
$3,000,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$1,000,000.00 | } | | |
o

~
[o)]
()]
—

i
o [o0]

M O O N IO 0 «— I N O O O O o
O O O O ™ ™ — o o NN 0O 0o 0o 0o 5 9 o
O O O O O O O O O O o o o o o o o
AN AN N &N AN AN &N &N &N NN N N NN N N

Figure 6: Estimated historic and projected tax revenue from renewable energy assets in the MD of Pincher Creek

The option of repowering provides interesting opportunities for sites with large amounts of turbines
as they can be replaced with fewer units that generate more power. For instance the 60 Castle River
turbines could be replaced by 10-15 larger turbines when they reach end of life.

Recommendations:

1.

Pursue Repowering Existing Turbines: To mitigate the expected decline in tax revenue, the
MD should consider working with wind farm operators to explore repowering opportunities.
Repowering involves replacing older turbines with newer, more efficient models, which
could extend the life of the wind farms, maintain or even increase energy production, and
stabilize or increase the associated tax revenues. Given the age and depreciation of some
assets, this approach could offer a practical way to sustain the economic benefits of wind
energy in the region.

Explore Development in Other Spaces: The MD should actively pursue opportunities to
diversify its development portfolio. Exploring projects such as the Captus generation
facility, industrial manufacturing, or modern compute facilities can reduce reliance on wind
energy alone.

Explore Renewable Development alighed with Community Values: As renewable energy
presents one of the most accessible and profitable resources in the MD, further strategy
around encouragement alighed with community values offers an avenue to financial
sustainability. This includes ensuring that projects do not interfere with existing land uses,
such as agriculture or recreational activities, and that they provide tangible benefits to local
residents. Engaging the community in the planning process will help to ensure that new
developments are supported and contribute positively to the local economy and
environment.

Page 22 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

By focusing on these strategies, the Municipal District of Pincher Creek can secure a more stable
and sustainable economic future while continuing to lead in renewable energy development.

Page 23 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Bylaw Review

The Land use bylaws (LUBs) of neighboring jurisdictions with similar regional features, such as
population, topography, and renewable energy policies, were evaluated for the purpose of
identifying opportunities to improve the MD LUB. The review varied based on the relevancy and
content of each bylaw as shown below in Table 13.

Table 13: Municipal Land use bylaw review level

Review

Detailed review

Municipal District of Pincher Creek

Municipal District of Ranchland Cursory review
Municipal District of Willow Creek Detailed review
County of Paintearth Detailed review
Vulcan County Cursory review
Municipal District of Taber Detailed review

County of Forty Mile Cursory review

Cardston County Cursory review

Based on the review completed of similar jurisdictions throughout Alberta, bylaws that contained
differentiating criteria from that of the MD of Pincher Creek are presented in this report to provide
an opportunity to enhance the MD’s bylaw. The LUBs selected for comparison include the MD of
Taber (MDT), the MD of Willow Creek (MDWC), and County of Paintearth (CPE). MDT is undergoing a
revision of their LUB, therefore this document references the draft version, published in April 2024.
Based on comparison with other LUBs, MDWC has one of the most extensive and in-depth LUBs
that includes many strong points which may be beneficial to the MDPC’s LUB.

The following section provides a description of each jurisdiction, which is followed by a description
of the solar and wind sections in each resCPEtive LUB. The final section of the report summarizes
the key differences in each bylaw section and outlines some recommendations that can be
integrated into the Municipal District of Pincher Creek’s LUB.

Municipal District of Pincher Creek

The Municipal District of Pincher Creek (MDPC), located in southwestern Alberta, is a rural area
with a population of approximately 3,200. While agriculture, particularly cattle ranching and grain
farming, remains the backbone of the local economy, the district has become a leader in renewable
energy, specifically wind power.

The district’s largest population center is the Town of Pincher Creek, with approximately 3,500
residents. As the primary economic and administrative hub, it provides services to the surrounding
rural communities and has strong ties to the renewable energy industry. The Hamlets of Lundbreck,

Page 24 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Beaver Mines and Pincher Station, though smaller, play an important role in supporting the region’s
agricultural, tourism and energy sectors.

In addition to its focus on energy and agriculture, the MDPC benefits from its proximity to Waterton
Lakes National Park, and Castle Mountain Resort, which enhance its appeal for tourism. The
district is committed to sustainable development, balancing economic growth with environmental
conservation. Its Land Use Bylaw (LUB), last updated in April 2024, supports this commitment by
creating a regulatory framework that promotes both agricultural activities and renewable energy
projects while preserving the traditional Western Canadian lifestyle.

Municipal District of Willow Creek

The Municipal District of Willow Creek, located in southern Alberta, is a predominantly rural area
with a population of approximately 6,100. The largest town in the district is Claresholm, with a
population of around 3,400. Another key center is Fort Macleod, a historic town with approximately
3,300 residents, known for its early role in Alberta’s settlement and agricultural development.
Nanton, a smaller town with around 2,000 people, is a local hub for agriculture and is recognized
for its aviation museum and historic attractions. The Village of Stavely, with a population of about
500, serves the surrounding rural community, while the Hamlet of Granum, with approximately 400
residents, was once a village but was dissolved into the MD in 2020.

The district's economy is primarily driven by agriculture, with cattle ranching and crop production
being the main activities. In recent years, the MD has seen an increase in renewable energy
development, particularly wind and solar projects, which have become increasingly important
contributors to the local economy.

The MD of Willow Creek places a strong emphasis on sustainable land use and environmental
stewardship. Its Land Use Bylaw, most recently updated in 2023, reflects ongoing efforts to balance
economic development with environmental considerations. The district has prioritized sustainable
practices in agriculture and energy development, ensuring that growth aligns with long-term
environmental goals.

Renewable energy development in the region is supported by favorable natural conditions for wind
energy and abundant solar resources, positioning the MD as an important player in Alberta’s
growing renewable energy sector. The Claresholm Solar Project is one of the largest solar farms in
Canada at 132 MW. The district continues to review and update its land use regulations to
accommodate the evolving needs of both traditional agriculture and emerging energy technologies.

Municipal District of Taber

The Municipal District of Taber located in southcentral Alberta, approximately 50 kilometers east of
Lethbridge, is a region focused on agriculture and, more recently, renewable energy development.

Page 25 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

As of the 2021 Census, the population of the MD of Taber is about 7,500, with an additional 8,900
residents in the town of Taber, bringing the total population to approximately 16,400.

The district's economy is primarily based on agriculture, with key activities including crop
production (notably sugar beets, potatoes, and corn), livestock farming, and food processing. The
area is supported by an extensive irrigation infrastructure, making it a highly productive agricultural
zone. In addition to agriculture, the oil and gas sector has historically contributed to the local
economy, though its significance has diminished with the rise of renewable energy.

In recent years, the MD of Taber has become a center for renewable energy projects. Several wind
farms operate in the area, including the Vauxhall Wind Farm, which benefits from favorable wind
conditions in southern Alberta. Additionally, large-scale solar projects such as the Taber Solar
Project contribute to the district’s renewable energy capacity. The region also has smaller-scale
hydroelectric projects tied to its irrigation systems, further supporting localized renewable energy
generation.

County of Paintearth

County of Paintearth (CPE), located in central Alberta, is a predominantly rural area with a strong
focus on agriculture, particularly cattle ranching, grain farming, and oilseed production. The county
has a population of approximately 2,100 and is home to several small communities that support
the surrounding agricultural economy. In recent years, renewable energy has emerged as an
important economic driver in Paintearth, with significant development in wind and solar power.

County of Paintearth is home to notable renewable energy projects, including the Halkirk Wind
Project, one of Alberta’s larger wind farms, with a capacity of 150 MW. Additionally, the Capital
Power Paintearth Wind Project provides further wind energy generation in the area. Solar
development is also gaining traction, reflecting the county's growing role in clean energy.

The main population centers in County of Paintearth include the Town of Castor, which serves as
the administrative and service hub for the region with a population of around 900. Coronation,
another town within the county, has a population of approximately 800 and provides essential
services to the local agricultural community. Smaller hamlets such as Halkirk also contribute to the
county's economic and social structure.

County of Paintearth is committed to sustainable land use practices, integrating its agricultural
base with renewable energy development. The Land Use Bylaw (LUB) has been adapted to facilitate
the growth of renewable energy projects while ensuring that agricultural activities remain a central
focus. The county’s efforts to balance economic growth and environmental sustainability are
reflected in its approach to land use planning and development, ensuring that both traditional
agriculture and emerging energy technologies can coexist and thrive.

Page 26 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Solar

The Province of Alberta is home to some of the best solar resources in Canada and has seen a
steady increase in solar development to meet growing energy demand. The following section will
provide a background on solar development in Alberta, followed by a bylaw review outlining
differences from the MDPC bylaw.

Solar Development in Alberta

Alberta’s first significant solar farm, Brooks Solar, began operations in 2017. It was the first utility-
scale solar project in the province, with a capacity of 17 MW. Developed by Elemental Energy,
Brooks Solar marked the beginning of large-scale solar energy projects in Alberta and set the
foundation for further expansion in the sector. The largest solar farm currently operating in Alberta
is Travers Solar, located in Vulcan County. This solar project, developed by Greengate Power, has a
capacity of 465 MW and became operational in 2022.

Solar development in Alberta has been rapidly progressing in recent years due to its natural
abundance of sunlight and alignment with environmental goals. As of 2024, Alberta has 1,500 MW
of solar installed on its grid. The deregulated electricity market in Alberta makes the solar industry
attractive to private businesses and those looking to attain renewable energy credits to offset
corporate emissions. Despite significant advancements, developers still face barriers, especially
near urban centers and populated regions.

Project Lifespan and Maintenance

Solar panels typically have a lifespan of 25 to 35 years. To ensure optimal performance and
longevity, solar farms require regular maintenance. This includes managing weeds and vegetation
to prevent shading and potential damage to the panels. Cleaning the panels is also essential, as
dirt and debris can reduce their efficiency. Additionally, continuous monitoring of the infrastructure
is necessary to detect and address any issues promptly. Corrective maintenance, such as repairing
or replacing faulty components, is performed as needed to maintain the system’s reliability.

Despite these maintenance needs, solar farms generally require minimal staffing. The number of
employees needed depends on the size of the project, but it typically involves only a few
individuals. These staff members are responsible for routine inspections, maintenance tasks, and
ensuring the overall smooth operation of the solar farm. This low staffing requirement makes solar
farms a cost-effective and efficient solution for renewable energy production.

Land Requirements

Solar developments are land-intensive and require the proposed site to meet various prerequisites.
Large areas of land are needed for commercial-scale projects, which can compete with agriculture.
Lower-quality agricultural land and flat or gently sloping terrain are preferable as they simplify

Page 27 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

installation. Technological advancements have made it possible to install solar panels on a wider
range of terrain. Proximity to transmission infrastructure is crucial for easy integration into the
electrical grid, reducing the need for grid updates. Panels must be oriented to avoid glare on
neighboring roads and buildings, and site reclamation must be considered. Given the extensive
land needed for solar developments, developers are often encouraged to adopt agrivoltaics or
enhance space efficiency by incorporating animal grazing beneath the panels.

Regulatory Oversight

The Alberta Utilities Commission (AUC) oversees the approval of solar projects, ensuring they meet
regulations and align with public goals. Additionally, the municipality where the project is located
must approve it. Municipal districts, as primary stakeholders, need to create bylaws that reflect
their goals and allow decisions that serve the best interests of residents.

The following section will review the Municipal District of Pincher Creek’s Land use Bylaw as it
relates to solar development, and compare it to other Municipal Bylaws, providing opportunities for
adjustment and improvement.

Municipal District Pincher Creek LUB solar review

The MDPC LUB was updated in April 2024 and is one of the most recent bylaws among similar
jurisdictions. Solar energy systems in the MDPC LUB are classified into two different categories:
household and commercial/industrial. The bylaw balances environmental considerations with
community impact, and contains a standard layout outlining land preference, information to
accompany development applications, setbacks, conditions of approval.

Municipal District of Willow Creek LUB solar review

The MDWC LUB was published in April 2019 and emphasizes the integration of renewable energy
systems with minimal disruption to existing land uses [10]. It outlines specific criteria for site
selection, including proximity to infrastructure and compatibility with surrounding land uses.
Compared to other similar bylaws, the Willow Creek LUB places a stronger focus on balancing
renewable energy development with agricultural and residential land preservation, ensuring that
solar projects do not negatively impact the community’s primary land uses. The bylaw categorizes
solar energy systems into Individual (roof/wall mounted), Individual (free standing), or industrial
scale solar energy systems. For the purposes of this study, only sections relevant to the industrial
scale solar energy systems in this LUB will be considered.

Differences

The MDWC Land Use Bylaw outlines more specific criteria for preferred land suitable for solar
developments.

Page 28 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Preferred Land: Although the MDWC'’s LUB on solar energy systems shares many similarities with
the MDPC’s LUB, one distinction lies in the phrasing regarding preferred installation sites. The
following are excerpts from the Willow Creek Land Use Bylaw relating to the preferred land;

e “The Development Authority will consider the following as preferable sites:

0 use of the poor quality lowest productive land and dry corners is preferred;

0 use of cut-off, fragmented, irregular shaped parcels is preferred;

0 to the extent possible, use of irrigated agricultural land should be
avoided/minimized; and

0 the use of an unsubdivided quarter section of high-quality agricultural land
that has or could contain irrigation system infrastructure shall not be
considered as suitable unless the Development Authority determines
special or unique circumstances may warrant its inclusion. Consideration of
the proximity to electrical sub-stations and feeder distribution infrastructure
in relation to the location of the development may be considered as part of
the special circumstances present.”

Municipal District of Taber LUB solar review

The MDT LUB defines solar systems as class A/B/C. Class A systems have a generation capacity of
less than 150 kW, Class B systems have a generating capacity between 150kW -5 MW, and Class C
systems have a capacity greater than 5 MW. Class C systems direct their generated electricity to
the transmission grid and are primarily intended for offsite consumption. Sections in the LUB
concerning Class C systems will be emphasized for this study.

Differences

MDT LUB’s contain more detailed guidelines for the public consultation process prior to a
development application submission and encourages developers to schedule a meeting with the
municipality prior to submitting an application.

Pre-Application Guidelines: A pre-application section is included in the MDT LUB, which is not
present in the MDPC LUB. This section outlines the actions that the developer must take before
submitting a development permit application and emphasizes community consultation and
communication with the MD. The following are excerpts from the MDT LUB pertaining to the pre-
application guidelines;

e  “Prior to submitting a development permit application for a Solar Energy System Class C
development, the applicant shall:

0 Schedule a pre-application meeting with the MD of Taber Planning and
Development Department to discuss the proposed development and review
municipal requirements. Applicants are encouraged to schedule the preapplication
meeting prior to submitting an application to the Alberta Utilities Commission.

Page 29 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

0 Host a public information meeting to solicit the views of the public regarding the
proposed development, which meets the following criteria:
= direct notification of the meeting is provided to landowners within a 2 mile
(8.2 km) radius of the project boundary;
= direct notification of the meeting is provided to the Municipal District of
Taber;
= notification is provided at least 21 days prior to the meeting
Application Requirements: The application requirements in the MDT LUB are more detailed,
explicitly requiring descriptions of any soil disruption, soil management, and outlining the
expectations regarding reporting on any public consultation. The following are excerpts from the
MDT LUB pertaining to the application requirements;

e “a detailed description of any proposal to disturb, displace, remove, relocate, move, strip,
undermine, affect, stockpile, etc., topsoil or ground cover on the site during the
construction period and the rationale or need for doing so,

e site plan delineating areas of topsoil or groundcover to be disturbed, displaced, removed,
relocated, moved, stripped, undermined, affected, stockpiled, etc., during the period of
construction, including estimated acreage of affected areas and stockpile volumes and
detailed information on how and where stripped soils will be stockpiled, and

e detailed description of the soil management/conservation practices and erosion control
measures proposed to mitigate the impacts associated with wind and water for the period
of both construction and post-construction, including sCPEifics on how blowing soil will be
managed during winds which are prevalent in the MD of Taber.

e a summary of public consultation completed to date, including a detailed report of the
comments received at the public information meeting required under section 4.1(b)”

County of Paintearth LUB solar review

County of Paintearth (CPE) updated their LUB in June 2024, with a particular emphasis on
operational standards and waste management. The LUB encourages agricultural collaboration and
combines much of the regulations concerning solar systems and wind systems in the same
section. Solar systems are categorized into “Microgeneration” and “Macrogeneration — Solar
Farms”. For the purposes of this overview, only bylaw sections pertaining to solar farms will be
considered.

Differences

The CPE LUB provides detailed specifications on preferred land for solar projects, with an emphasis
on soil quality and selection. The LUB also outlines the expectations for an Emergency Response
Layout plan, reclamation funding, site security measures, and encourages agricultural
collaboration. Additionally, in contrast to others, the CPE LUB includes an extensive Battery Storage
section and detailed waste management protocols.

Page 30 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Preferred Land: Similar to other bylaws, CPE outlines characteristics of land that is more desirable
for solar developments. The following are excerpts from the CPE LUB pertaining to the preferred
land;

e “Lands suitable and preferred for use:

o lands with soil classification of AB Soil Classes 3 to 4 or lower. No solar installations shall
be permitted to occupy lands with soil classifications of 2 or higher as classified by the
Alberta Land Suitability Rating System (LSRS), unless they meet provincial government

regulations to demonstrate coexistence with crops and/or livestock

o lands not currently being cropped or in production of hay. Grazing lands would be preferred
lands for minimal soil disturbance or erosion issues”

Emergency Response Layout Plan: Compared to other LUBs, the CPE LUB provides more specific
details concerning an Emergency Response Plan. The following are excerpts from the CPE LUB
pertaining to the emergency response layout plan;

e “Layout considerations - internal access roads shall be shown on a layout of the solar
arrays and shall include space for:

0 perimeter access of the arrays for adequate fire fighting apparatus;

0 internal access roads spaced at intervals within the arrays for adequate fire fighting
apparatus;

0 separation distance of at least 50 m from a property line for any substation or inverter
collection points.”

Reclamation: The CPE LUB specifically states that funds to cover costs of decommissioning and
reclamation must be demonstrated by the developer. The following are excerpts from the CPE LUB
pertaining to reclamation of solar sites;

e “provide an overview of how sufficient funds are secured and available at the project end of

life to cover the cost of decommissioning and reclamation

o the Development Authority may require the establishment of a security trust to be held for

decommissioning purposes at a value determined by its discretion.”

Site Security: CPE includes security requirements for commercial solar farms, and further defines
the specifications of the required safety infrastructure. The following are excerpts from the CPE
LUB pertaining to the pre-application guidelines;

Page 31 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

“Site security — all lands hosting macro solar farm installations shall be perimeter fenced
with a minimum of 4’ high barbed wire fence (4 wire).

all equipment or electric circuit collection points and substation facilities are to be

enclosed with a chain link security fence of at least 6.

Agricultural Collaboration: The CPE LUB suggests using agrivoltaics to maximize space efficiency.
The following is an excerpt from the CPE LUB regarding agricultural collaboration;

“Collaborative agricultural use - where possible all macro solar installations are

encouraged to allow grazing or animal access use.”

Battery Storage: The CPE LUB includes a section on battery storage which isn’t addressed in any
other LUB reviewed, and provides direction for facilities that intend to store generated energy from
solar systems. The following are excerpts from the CPE LUB pertaining to battery energy storage
systems;

“All BESS - battery energy storage systems — for any renewable energy power plant shall be
considered as accessory buildings to the power plant as allowed in the Districts permitted,
and must meet the following requirements at a minimum to ensure safety of the

surroundings and emergency response access:

Location selected shall be developed in such a manner that the grounds on and around the
BESS facilities shall be of a fire retardant, non-combustible material such as rock, concrete
or other similar material for at least 30m and no flammable structures are contained within

that surface;
Any BESS shall be set back from any residence a minimum of 300 m;

All BESS facilities shall have a means of direct access to/from a County road and shall be
constructed in such a manner as to allow heavy truck traffic to convey across unimpeded;

All BESS facilities shall be perimeter fenced with at least a 6’ high security chain link fence
with barbed wire overhang;

All BESS facilities shall be signed on the perimeter fence gate or side nearest the access
road with a sign indicating:

the danger of stored energy/electricity
access is restricted

Emergency response number of company iv) any other pertinent information sCPEific to

stored energy”

Page 32 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Waste Management: CPE describes more specific instructions in their LUB for waste management
of solar projects, with an emphasis on recycling and waste management practices. The following
are excerpts from the CPE LUB pertaining to waste management protocols;

o “All transport bracings, dunnage, crating or wrapping/packing material to be identified for

removal (or recycling where possible)

e Temporary office site produced materials of paper products, office general garbage, or any
compostable or biodegradable products

e Allwastes are required to be removed offsite and disposed of at the sanitary landfill located
north west of the Town of Coronation.

e Applicants/Developers/Operators will all be responsible for the cleanup of any litter
escaping the lands being used or developed within an approved Development Permit”

Wind

Wind energy development has a long history in Alberta and continues to play a significant role in
supplying power to the grid, particularly in the southern portions of the Province. The following
section will provide a background on wind development in Alberta followed by a bylaw review
outlining differences from the MCPD bylaw.

Wind Energy Development in Alberta

Alberta has been a leader in wind energy development in Canada, benefiting from its vast wind
resources, particularly in the southern regions. The Province's first significant wind project, Cowley
Ridge Wind Farm, began operations in 1993 near Pincher Creek. With an initial capacity of 16.5 MW,
Cowley Ridge was one of the first commercial wind farms in Canada, setting the stage for future
wind developments.

Alberta’s largest wind farm is the Whitla Wind Project, located in the County of Forty Mile, with a
total capacity of 353 MW. Developed by Capital Power, Whitla Wind was completed in phases, with
the final phase becoming operational in 2022. Other notable projects include the Blackspring Ridge
Wind Farm, a 300 MW project located near Vulcan, Alberta. As of 2024, Alberta has over 3,800 MW
of installed wind capacity, with new projects continually being added.

Alberta’s deregulated electricity market allows private wind developers to sell power directly into
the grid or through power purchase agreements (PPAs) with corporate buyers, making wind energy
a viable economic option for reducing carbon emissions.

Project Lifespan and Maintenance

Wind turbines typically have a lifespan of 20 to 30 years. Regular maintenance is required to ensure
optimal performance and prevent mechanical failures. Key maintenance tasks include routine
inspections, component replacements, and lubrication of moving parts. Wind farms are often

Page 33 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

equipped with remote monitoring systems that detect performance issues and provide alerts for
preventive or corrective actions.

The number of technicians required for wind turbine maintenance varies depending on the size and
scale of the wind farm. For small wind farms with 1 to 10 turbines, typically 1 to 3 technicians are
needed for routine maintenance, inspections, and minor repairs. As the scale increases, larger
wind farms generally require 5 to 10+ technicians to manage regular inspections, preventive
maintenance. Technicians perform scheduled inspections and emergency repairs when needed.
Predictive maintenance technologies help to optimize operations by addressing potential failures
before they result in costly downtime. Wind turbines also require large capital maintenance
activities such as gearbox replacements, blade repair, and others which necessitate specialized
skills and often have contractors brought in to complete.

Land Requirements

Wind farms are relatively land-efficient, allowing agricultural activities such as cattle grazing or
crop production to continue around turbines. However, selecting appropriate locations for wind
farms involves considering factors like wind speed, terrain suitability, and proximity to transmission
infrastructure.

Wind turbines are often located in rural areas with strong and consistent wind resources,
particularly in southern Alberta, where the geography and wind conditions are optimal. Wind
turbines are spread out to reduce wake effects, typically requiring large tracts of land for utility-
scale projects. However, the actual physical footprint of a turbine is relatively small, allowing
multiple land uses.

Regulatory Oversight

In Alberta, the Alberta Utilities Commission (AUC) regulates wind energy projects, ensuring that
they meet environmental and land-use requirements. Developers must comply with AUC
regulations regarding noise, visual impacts, and wildlife protection. Environmental assessments
are often required to evaluate the impact on birds, bats, and other wildlife, particularly in regions
with high biodiversity.

Additionally, developers must adhere to municipal land-use bylaws (LUBs) established by the local
government. These bylaws regulate setback distances, noise limits, and community impact.
Municipal districts with extensive wind resources, such as Pincher Creek and Forty Mile, have
adapted their LUBs to accommodate the growing demand for wind energy while protecting local
communities and agricultural activities. The Alberta Environment and Parks (AEP) also plays a role
in ensuring that wind projects align with provincial environmental goals, requiring measures to
minimize the ecological footprint of wind energy development.

MD Pincher Creek LUB wind review

The MDPC LUB categorizes Wind Energy Conversion Systems (WECS) into Category 1, 2 and 3
WECS, where Category 1 and 2 WECS are individual structures and Category 3 WECS have heights
greater than 35 m or farm systems. The WECS section includes application requirements,

Page 34 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

setbacks, height restrictions, noise and visual impact regulations, and environmental
considerations, but only provides a high-level overview of these topics [4].

MD Willow Creek LUB wind review

MDWC defines two types of Wind Energy Conversion Systems (WECS) - Individual, which consists
of a single structure that does not supply power to the grid, and Industrial Scale, consisting of one
or more structures designed for commercial purposes. Overall, the WECS section of the MDWC
LUB is very thorough and provides an in-depth guide for developers looking to apply for a WECS
farm. The bylaw also includes factors that may influence the developing authority’s decision to
approve an application, more detailed setbacks, impact minimization factors, a diagram of a
WECS, and a statement on collector lines.

Differences

The MDWC LUB is extremely detailed and provides specific points for developers to follow. The site
plan requirements are more comprehensive, clearly outlining the necessary elements to be
included in the submitted plan. Other requirements are included in the development application
requirements, notably a historical resource analysis and water mapping for landowners with water
wells that may be affected by developments.

Development Application Requirements - Site Plan Requirements: The requirements of the site
plan to be submitted with the development application are more extensive in the MDWC LUB. The
following are excerpts from the MDWC LUB relating to developing an accurate site plan:

e “if a non-tubular design is proposed, the anchor design, location of any guy wire anchors,
and how the tower is to be secured from unauthorized access or use;

e existing topography with contours at 3.0 m (10 ft.) intervals of the land;’=

e the project boundary including all lands (full quarter section and individual parcels) which
area under lease or contract for the development of the multiple WECS / Industrial Scale
Wind Farm”

Development Application Requirements — Other points: There are several points, as listed below,
that are required to accompany any Industrial scale wind farm proposal in the MDWC LUB. This
includes road impacts, construction and reclamation plans, environment consideration analysis,
fire and emergency plans, landowner and neighbor response plans, historical resource analysis,
public consultation process results, and pre-existing water infrastructure testing. The following are
excerpts from the MDWC LUB pertaining to development application accompaniments;

e “anyimpacts to the local road system including but not limited to:

0 a plan showing ingress and egress from the property or parcel detailing any impacts to the
local road system including required approaches from public roads having regard to the

Municipal District’s Road standards; and

Page 35 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

identification of the road or roads to be used to bring construction to be used to remove
construction materials/debris and equipment from the property or parcel;

a construction transportation plan which includes lay down yard parking areas and an

employee and equipment transportation plan

post-construction decommissioning and reclamation plan as required by the Conservation
and Reclamation Directive for Renewable Energy Operations (Alberta Environment
(2018/09/14);

an analysis of environmental consideration including roadways, on-site potential for fluid
leaks, impact upon wildlife, or any other identified issues;

a fire and emergency response plan prepared by a qualified professional approved by the
municipality and the plan is to be reviewed and approved by the MD of Willow Creek
Emergency Services; and

a Landowner and Neighbor Emergency Response Plan prepared by a qualified professional
which addresses safety, education, and response plans of affected landowners.

the results of the historical resource analysis, if required by Alberta Culture; and
the results of the public consultation process initiated by the developer; and

an analysis of private water wells, where landowners give consent, within 2.0 km (1.2 miles)
of any proposed turbine which includes water well mapping, water quality and flow test
benchmarking conducted by the applicant prepared by a qualified professional approved by
the municipality,

Case-by-Case conditions: The MDWC includes factors that may be considered depending on the
project. These factors may increase or decrease a project’s potential for being approved but allow
the authority to make decisions on project approvals with consideration of the factors. The
following are excerpts from the MDWC LUB pertaining to the factors;

“3.4 The Development Authority may approve multiple WECS / Industrial Scale Wind Farm
on a case-by-case basis having regard for:

proximity to other adjacent land uses;
density of WECS;

consideration of the cumulative effect of all WECS approved or proposed within 5 km (3
miles) of the proposal;

underlying utilities;

Page 36 of 57



(0]

MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

information received through the circulation process and at the development hearing.”

Impact minimization: Several factors are considered by MDWC to minimize impacts on
surrounding regions. Setbacks are highlighted for the different areas such as highways, parks,
municipal/provincial boundaries, and residential areas. The following are excerpts from the MDWC
LUB concerning impact minimization regions;

“In balancing existing land uses and the development of a multiple WECS / Industrial Scale
Wind Farm, the Development Authority may require developers to minimize impacts:

within 1.6 km (1.0 miles) of a Provincially controlled highway;

within 3.2 km (2.0 miles) of the boundary of a Municipally, Provincially or Federally
designated parks;

within 2 km (1.2 miles) of a developed Group Country Residential land use designation or
Hamlet or Town boundary.”

Setbacks: The MDWC LUB outlines setbacks dwelling units, specifically citing AUC Rule 012, and
also mentions that setbacks can be increased, depending on the location of the proposed multi-
WECS project. The following are excerpts from the MDWC LUB pertaining to setbacks;

“A WECS shall be setback from a dwelling unit within the wind farm project boundary (lands
leased for wind energy development) not less than 500 m or as meets AUC Rule 012
permitted levels, whichever is greater.

In the case of multiple WECS, setbacks can be increased from the minimum setback
requirements in the district depending upon the number of WECS in a group and the
prominence of the location, in order to reduce the impact to a residence, building, public
roadway or highway, or land use.”

Diagram of a WECS: The MDWC LUB includes a diagram of a WECS shown below in Figure 7, which
is unique to this LUB. The following is the diagram from the MDWC LUB depicting a WECS;

Page 37 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

A

Tower

Total

Height

|— \/
S Ground

Level

Figure 7. Diagram from the MDWC LUB depicting a typical WECS

Collector lines: The MDWC LUB includes information regarding the connection of the WECS farm
to the electrical grid and specifies the location of collector lines and notes any considerations that
may be made regarding collector lines. The following are excerpts from the MDWC LUB regarding
the location of collector lines;

e “required to connect WESC from one quarter section to another shall be underground
except where the Development Authority approves overhead installation; and

e any collector line necessary to service the development shall be located on private land
and not located in developed or undeveloped municipal road allowances.

¢ Notwithstanding Section 3.16 (c), the Municipality will consider collector lines which cross
a developed or undeveloped municipal road allowance through the execution of a road

crossing agreement approved by the Municipality.”

MD Taber LUB wind review

While the MDT LUB is less extensive than the MDWC LUB, the section concerning WECS includes
information on the decommissioning that is not shown in other LUBs. There are no separate

Page 38 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

sections for individual WECS and WECS farms - referred to as “Multi-WECS” in this particular
bylaw. The WECS section of the LUB contains the expected zoning requirements, setbacks,
environmental and visual considerations, community consultation expectations, and
decommissioning processes.

Differences

The MDT LUB places more emphasis on the decommissioning processes compared to other LUBs
and provides more detail into the development application requirements. The MDT LUB includes
information about warning systems for aircrafts, depending on the region of the wind farm.

Application Requirements: The MDT LUB provides more specific requirements regarding
applications for wind energy development projects. This includes a request for specification of the
anchor design of the proposed system, environmental management plans, and an assessment
conducted by a qualified professional to demonstrate site suitability. The following are excerpts
from the MDT LUB concerning application requirements;

e specifications on the foundations and/or anchor design, including location and anchoring

of any guy wires;

e revegetation and weed management plan that addresses both the construction period and
the projected life span of the development;

e soils management/conservation and erosion control plan during the period of construction

and post-construction;

e environmental assessment review prepared by a qualified professional and/or other studies
and reports to demonstrate site suitability;

Decommissioning Process: The decommissioning process in the MDT LUB is comprehensive and
outlines the expected procedure to be outlined regarding the decommissioning process for WECS.
The following are excerpts from the MDT LUB regarding decommissioning;

o “decommissioning/reclamation of footings, pads, wires; and other associated equipment

and infrastructure;

e decommissioning/reclamation of roads, driveways, pathways, and other similar
disturbances;

e containment of hazardous materials;
e haulroutes for disposal of materials;
e timeline for completion of decommissioning plan;

¢ financial security forimplementation of decommissioning; and

Page 39 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

e any other matters required by the Municipal Planning Commission.”

Warning System: The MDT LUB includes a statement on the installation of a warning system if the
conditions are deemed appropriate in the “Conditions of Approval for Multi-WECS” section. The
following is an excerpt from the MDT LUB detailing the potential need for a warning system;

e “require that a proximity warning system be installed which will reduce the extent of light
pollution emanating from the project, including but not limited to, a passive radar sensor
system that is able to use radio frequencies to determine if there is an aircraft in the vicinity,
its distance, position, and velocity;”

County of Paintearth LUB wind review

Although the WECS section of the CPE LUB is shorter compared to other bylaws, the county still
highlights many similar sections as found in other bylaws. Overall, the bylaw balances the
perspective of local residents while allowing for development in the wind energy sector. The CPE
LUB was last updated in June 2024, and provides a modern perspective on development in County
of Paintearth.

Differences

The CPE LUB contains detailed information on the expected public consultation process and a
section concerning battery energy storage system specifications. There is also mention of how wind
farm density will be determined by the developing authority.

Wind Farm Density: The CPE LUB includes a section on wind farm density and outlines how the
amount and placement of WECS will be determined. The following is an excerpt from the CPE LUB
concerning wind farm density;

e Wind Farm Density The amount and placement of all WECS will be based upon the setback

requirements and spacing as well as the technical alignment for maximum efficiency.

Public Consultation Process: The public consultation process outlined in the CPE LUB concerning
WECS are very detailed and demonstrate the expectations of public consultation by developers
very clearly. The following are excerpts from the CPE LUB concerning the public consultation
process;

¢ Public consultation must be conducted prior to any application submission and shall
include:

o0 Public meeting hosted and advertised by either general mail out or newspaper advertising at
least two weeks in advance, with the applicant’s contact information being provided in

either.

Page 40 of 57



(0]

(0]

MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Adjacent landowners to proposed WECS sites must be notified in writing, with copies of
notice and landowners contacted provided with application information.

Information provided at meeting must address all points required in the development

permit application as identified in (2) below.
Opportunity for feedback from the public must be allowed.

Summary of consultation and feedback to be included with application as requested

Battery Storage: The CPE LUB includes a section on battery storage which are not addressed in any
other LUB and provides direction for facilities that intend to store generated energy from solar
systems. The following are excerpts from the CPE LUB pertaining to battery energy storage
systems;

“All BESS - battery energy storage systems — for any renewable energy power plant shall be
considered as accessory buildings to the power plant as allowed in the Districts permitted,
and must meet the following requirements at a minimum to ensure safety of the

surroundings and emergency response access:

Location selected shall be developed in such a manner that the grounds on and around the
BESS facilities shall be of a fire retardant, non-combustible material such as rock, concrete
or other similar material for at least 30m and no flammable structures are contained within

that surface;
Any BESS shall be set back from any residence a minimum of 300 m;

All BESS facilities shall have a means of direct access to/from a County road and shall be
constructed in such a manner as to allow heavy truck traffic to convey across unimpeded;

All BESS facilities shall be perimeter fenced with at least a 6’ high security chain link fence
with barbed wire overhang;

All BESS facilities shall be signed on the perimeter fence gate or side nearest the access
road with a sign indicating:

the danger of stored energy/electricity
access is restricted

Emergency response number of company iv) any other pertinent information specific to
stored energy”

Page 41 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Bylaw Review Summary

Upon review of each jurisdiction’s LUB and how they relate to solar energy conversion systems,
there were several opportunities identified to update the MDPC LUB. These areas include the
implementation of a preferred land location section, a pre-application process and detailed
community consultation records, emergency response plan, detailed plans on soil control and
reclamation, emphasizing agricultural collaboration, implementing a battery energy storage
systems section, and including detailed waste management practices.

Upon reviewing each jurisdiction's LUB in relation to wind energy conversion systems, several
opportunities were identified for updating the MDPC LUB, with the MDWC LUB being the most
comprehensive. These include enhancing the comprehensiveness of development application
requirements, mandating an analysis of private infrastructure such as water wells, clearly
communicating the factors considered for project approval, providing a detailed decommissioning
process, implementing a warning system, and establishing guidelines for battery energy storage
systems.

Bylaw Recommendations
e Specify Preferred Land Criteria:

0 Define what constitutes "preferred land" for solar and wind energy projects,
including acceptable soil ratings and guidelines that encourage coexistence with
agricultural activities.

e Pre-Application Meeting Requirement:

0 Mandate that developers schedule a pre-application meeting with the municipality

before submitting a development permit application.
e Public Consultation Expansion:

0 Enhance public consultation requirements, including detailed guidelines on

notification procedures, meeting formats, and incorporating public feedback.
e Detailed Soil and Erosion Control Measures:

0 Include comprehensive soil and erosion control measures for both the construction

and post-construction phases.
o Detailed Decommissioning Plan:

0 A thorough decommissioning plan, outlining specific actions for site restoration,

including funding for decommissioning activities.
e Emergency Response Layout Plan:

0 Develop an emergency response layout plan for renewable energy installations,

including access for firefighting and emergency services.
e Solar Farm Security Measures:
0 Outline specific security measures for solar farms, such as fencing, monitoring

systems, and secured access to key infrastructure.

Page 42 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Encourage Agricultural Collaboration:
0 Promote the use of agrivoltaics or other forms of agricultural collaboration to ensure
efficient land use.
Battery Energy Storage Systems Section:
0 Add a dedicated section on battery energy storage systems, specifying safety
requirements, setback distances, and emergency response considerations.
Waste Management Practices:
0 Provide detailed requirements for waste management, including recycling of
construction materials and proper disposal of operational waste.
Specific Development Application Requirements for Anchoring and Turbine Design:
0 Include specific requirements for the anchoring and design of wind turbines to
ensure stability and safety.
Comprehensive Environmental Impact Analysis:
0 Require a more detailed analysis of potential environmental impacts of energy
projects, covering aspects like wildlife, soil, and water resources.
Analysis of Impact on Private Infrastructure:
0 Require developers to assess the potential impact on private infrastructure, such as
water wells and other utilities, during the application process.
Collector Line Location Information:
0 Specify requirements for providing detailed information on the location of collector
lines and their potential impacts.
Detailed Aircraft Warning System Requirements:
0 Mandate the inclusion of an aircraft warning system for wind turbines to enhance
aviation safety.
Explicit Decision-Making Process for Farm Density:
0 Make the decision-making process more explicit regarding acceptable energy
development density on farmland to ensure transparency.
Battery System Section for Wind Energy Systems
0 Add a section on battery energy storage systems for wind energy projects, similar to
that for solar systems, including specific safety measures and operational
guidelines.

Page 43 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Community Consultation

The community consultation portion of this project includes an open house and accompanying
survey to gather feedback from residents concerning renewable energy developments in the region.
This initiative aligns with the district’s commitment to exploring sustainable energy solutions that
can support long-term environmental and economic goals.

The open house hosted on October 16, 2024 aimed to foster an inclusive space for residents to
discuss the potential benefits, challenges, and community impacts of renewable energy projects.
Through several informational, participants gained insight into the types of renewable technologies
under consideration, such as wind, solar, and energy storage systems.

The accompanying survey was open for two weeks post open house to gather detailed community
feedback on renewable energy topics, allowing residents to voice their perspectives on aspects
such as site selection, environmental concerns, economic benefits, and long-term sustainability.

Structure

The open house was advertised online through the website and social media channels as well as
local newspaper. It featured five posters shown in Appendix A, each depicting information on
renewable energy developments ranging from maps of existing generation and transmission
infrastructure, land types, and the Municipal Land Use Tool (MLUST), to the tax projections from
renewable energy systems. Participants were encouraged to explore the displays, engage in
discussions, and complete a survey before leaving. A survey was provided in paper format at the
open house and MD office for two weeks after the event, in addition to being available and
advertised online through social media avenues and the MD website.

Results

Approximately 20 individuals attended the open house, where the discussion was primarily focused
on repowering, maintaining farmland, and optimizing the use of existing developed areas for new
projects. The survey received 87 responses from residents of Pincher Creek and the surrounding
areas including Lundbreck, Beaver Mines, Cowley, and Livingstone Range. Overall, the majority of
residents expressed little to no support of wind and solar development as shown in Figure 8 and 9
within the MD.

For the first question, 38% of respondents indicated no support at all for the development of
renewable wind conversion systems within the MD, while the remaining 62% of participants
indicated some support for wind development. Of this population, 20 individuals indicated that
showed “little support”, 6 individuals were neutral on wind development, 12 individuals supported
wind development moderately, and 16 individuals showed full support for wind development within
the MD.

Page 44 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 8. Graph showing public responses regarding support of wind development in the MD of Pincher Creek.

Respondents showed less support for solar development within the MD as seen in Figure 9
compared to wind development, with 39% of respondents indicating no support at all and the
remaining 61% of participants indicating varying levels of support. Of all responses, 26% indicated
significant reservations around solar development within the MD, 6% remained neutral, 14%
somewhat indicated support for solar development, and 15% indicated full support for solar
development within the MD.

Figure 9. Graph showing public responses regarding support of solar development in the MD of Pincher Creek.

When asked about public concerns regarding the number of turbines within the MD, 10% of
participants indicated that they had no concerns, while the remaining 90% of participants indicated
varying levels of concern. 49% of respondents (43 responses) indicated they were very concerned
about the number of turbines within the MD, as shown in Figure 10. The second highest option
selected was “moderately concerned” with 22 responses, 12 selecting “slightly concerning”, 9
selecting “no concern at all”, and only 1 participating indicating that they were “neutral” regarding
the number of turbines within the MD.

Page 45 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 10. Graph showing public responses regarding the opinion of wind turbines in the MD of Pincher Creek.

When asked about the redevelopment of sites, 35% of responses expressed no support for
redevelopments, while the remaining 65% indicated varying levels of support for redevelopments.
The two most selected answers were “No redevelopment” at 30 responses, and “redevelopment at
the same scale” at 22 responses, followed closely by “redevelop at a smaller scale” with 20
responses all shown in Figure 11. Of all responses 9% of participants indicated that they would like
to see existing sites redeveloped at a larger scale, and 6% of respondents indicated that they would
like to see new site development. The tendency towards redevelopment at same or smaller scale

aligns with question 3 which indicated there was significant concern with the amount of turbines in
the MD.

Figure 11. Graph showing public responses regarding the redevelopment of existing sites.

When asked about preferences regarding development on brownfield sites, 31% of participants
indicated that they strongly supported development on brownfield sites, shown in Figure 12. No
development on brownfield sites was selected by 28% of respondents, while 24% indicated that
they generally support development on brownfield sites, and 18% were satisfied with the current
approach to brownfield site developments.

Page 46 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 12. Graph depicting public responses regarding developments on brownfield sites. The full question reads “What is
your preference regarding development on brownfield sites (like old gravel pits, oil wells, etc.) to increase value and
support reclamation?”

A majority of 73% of participants indicated that they expect developers to engage with the
community as early as possible at the site selection phase, as illustrated by Figure 13. 16% of
respondents indicated that preliminary design of developments would be an acceptable time for
developers to engage with the community, while 5% and 6% indicated that transmission planning
and pre-AUC submission would be the expected time for community engagement, respectively.

Figure 13. Graph illustrating public responses on the anticipated stage of development for community engagement.

Participants were asked about their opinion on the role that Municipal Land Use Suitability Tool
(MLUST) conflict maps and public sentiment have in guiding preferred development zones, shown
in Figure 14. The majority of responses (65% of participants) indicated that they believe that both
the MLUST maps and public opinion are equally as important in guiding preferred development
zoning, 22% of respondents supported that public opinion should be prioritized, and 13% of
respondents indicated that they believe that MLUST maps should take priority over public opinion.

Page 47 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 14. Graph illustrating responses concerning the importance of MLUST and Public opinion when making
development decisions. “What is your preference regarding the use of the MLUST conflict maps to guide preferred
development zones and restricted zones in the MD of Pincher Creek Land Use Bylaw?”

When asked about preferred community benefits for future renewable energy developments, 70%
of participants indicated that they would like to receive discounted energy as their preferred
method of community benefit, shown in Figure 15. The remaining responses showed varying levels
of interest with 23% indicating that the preferred method of benefit would be a community benefit
fund for local nonprofits, while 6% of participants indicated that they preferred community
sponsorship of events.

Figure 15. Graph depicting public opinion on the preferred method of community benefit from renewable energy
developments.

The participants were asked to rank potential development concerns from 1 to 5, with 1 being the
concern they believe should be highest in priority, and 5 being the lowest priority. Figure 16 shows a
summary of the responses, with reclamation and waste management ranking 1, closely followed by
agricultural collaboration. Erosions and topsoil planning was ranked 3™, water management ranked
4™ and traffic and access ranking 5.

Page 48 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 16. Concerns addressed in future development plans, ranked from 1 (highest concern) to 5 (lowest concern). The
full question reads “What is your preference regarding the use of the MLUST conflict maps to guide preferred development
zones and restricted zones in the MD of Pincher Creek Land Use Bylaw?”

Traffic and access was ranking 5" by a large margin, and was not ranked 1% by any participants, as
displayed in Figure 17 which shows a detailed breakdown of the survey responses, displaying the
frequency of each ranking for the concern.

Figure 17. Detailed breakdown of the ranking of each concern.

Participants were asked to rank their priorities for guiding future construction and redevelopment,
with 1 being their highest perceived priority and 5 being their lowest perceived priority. Figure 18
shows the summarized ranking. Construction close to existing transmission lines was ranked 1%,
followed by development on existing sites and brownfield sites. Maintaining the visual buffer zone
and landscape ranked 3™, construction on low agricultural value ranked 4™, and maximization of
energy potential and revenue ranked 5™.The first four choices were relatively close in frequency,
while the fifth option lagged significantly behind.

Page 49 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Figure 18. Summary of considered priorities ranked from 1 (highest concern) to 5 (lowest concern). The full question reads
“Rank your priorities for guiding our future construction and redevelopment efforts for renewable energy sites in the MD of
Pincher Creek, with 1 being your top priority and 5 being your lowest priority.”

Figure 19 shows a detailed breakdown of the response frequency for each priority to the previous
question.

Figure 19. Detailed breakdown of the ranking of each priority.

Discussion

Overall, the survey results indicate a divided community sentiment towards renewable energy
projects. While there is some support for wind and solar developments, a significant portion
of the community remains opposed or has reservations. Specifically, 38% of respondents
opposed wind development, and 39% opposed solar development. This suggests a need for
more community engagement and education to address concerns and build broader support.

A major concern among participants is the number of wind turbines, with 90% expressing
varying levels of concern. This highlights the importance of carefully planning turbine

placements and considering visual and environmental impacts. Additionally, while 65% of
respondents supported the redevelopment of existing sites, preferences varied, with many

Page 50 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

favoring redevelopment at the same or smaller scale. This indicates a cautious approach
towards expanding renewable energy infrastructure.

There is some support (55%) for developing renewable energy projects on brownfield sites,
which can help mitigate the use of agricultural land and address environmental reclamation.
Furthermore, 73% of participants expect developers to engage with the community at the site
selection phase, emphasizing the importance of early and transparent communication to
build trust and address concerns.

The survey revealed that 65% of participants believe both the Municipal Land Use Suitability
Tool (MLUST) maps and public opinion should equally guide development zoning. This
underscores the need for a balanced approach that incorporates technical assessments and
community feedback in decision-making processes.

A significant majority (70%) of respondents indicated a preference for discounted energy as a
community benefit from renewable energy projects. This suggests that tangible, direct
benefits to residents can enhance support for such developments. Other preferred benefits
included community benefit funds for local nonprofits and sponsorship of community events.

Participants ranked reclamation and waste management as the highest priority concerns for
future developments, followed by agricultural collaboration, erosion and topsoil planning,
water management, and traffic and access. These priorities reflect the community’s desire to
ensure that renewable energy projects are environmentally responsible and considerate of
local agricultural practices.

Additional Comments and Recommendations

Participants also provided additional comments, expressing a desire for consistent policies
across all industrial developments, not just renewables. There was interest in innovative
solutions like installing solar panels in parking lots to provide shade and reduce the need for
agricultural land. Concerns about viewscapes and environmental impacts were also noted,
highlighting the need for careful planning and mitigation strategies.

Conclusion

In conclusion, the Municipal District of Pincher Creek's Renewable Energy Conversion Study
reviewed the existing infrastructure and the associated tax projections, analysed similar land use
bylaws from neighbouring jurisdictions and conducted community consultation to understand
critical concerns about sustainable development, land use, and long-term economic viability. The
study found that renewable energy projects currently contribute approximately $4.6 million
annually, or 33% of the MD'’s tax base. However, this revenue is projected to decline steadily as
infrastructure ages and depreciates, with complete decommissioning anticipated by 2050 unless

Page 51 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

repowering or new developments occur. Public feedback collected through an open house and
survey revealed significant concerns about the current density of wind turbines, with 90% of
respondents expressing some level of concern. There was limited support for further wind and solar
developments, with a preference for focusing on brownfield sites and existing infrastructure. Novel
community benefit structures for projects and early consultation were highlighted as high priority
along with use of the MLUST tool and leveraging existing infrastructure, brownfields, and assets.

The report recommends several next steps to address these findings. First, the MD should prioritize
working with developers to repower aging wind farms to maintain or increase energy production
while stabilizing tax revenues. This could involve replacing older turbines with fewer, more efficient
models. Second, the MD should update its Land Use Bylaw to incorporate best practices from
similar jurisdictions, including more detailed requirements for site selection, community
consultation, and environmental impact assessments. Finally, the district should explore
brownfield developer and new community benefit strategies, such as direct reductions in local
energy costs, and strengthen early consultation processes to align future projects more closely
with community values. By adopting these measures, the MD can continue to lead in renewable
energy while ensuring sustainable growth and long-term economic stability.

Page 52 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Appendix A

Page 53 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Page 54 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Page 55 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Page 56 of 57



MD Pincher Creek RECS Final Report

Page 57 of 57



Discussion:

Sept 22
Sept 23
Sept 23
Sept 24
Sept 24
Sept 25
Sept 29
Sept 29
Oct 1
Oct 2
Oct 3
Oct 3
Oct 6
Oct 6
Oct 7
Oct 7
Oct 7
Oct 8
Oct 9
Oct9
Oct 9

Upcoming:

Oct 13
Oct 14
Oct 20

G4
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT ¢

September22, 2025, to October 10, 2025

Ag Service Board Mtg.

Alberta Sheriffs Interdiction Patrol Team, Council Chambers Mtg.
Council Committee and Council Meetings

HD Mechanic Apprentice Interviews
PCREMO Tabletop Exercise

JHSC Meeting

Senior Management Team Meeting

CPO Budget Meeting

New Benefits Provider Overview and Q&A
Meeting with CMR and Tourism and Sport
Water Meeting with MPE for project updates
PW Capital Budget Meeting

COR Audit, Preaudit Meeting

CPO Open House and New Bylaw Open House
Operating Budget for Safety

Planning Session

Subdivision Authority and Municipal Planning Commission
ARMAA Zone 1 Meeting in Lethbridge

COR Audit Interview

JHSC Site Inspection (AES/Airport)

EAC Meeting

Senior Management Team Meeting
Council Committee and Council Meetings
Livingstone Range School Division Board Member Elections

RECOMMENDATION:

That Council receives for information the Chief Administrative Officer’s report for the period September 22,
2025, to October 10, 2025.

Prepared by: Roland Milligan, CAO Date: October 9, 2025

Respectfully presented to: Council Date: October 11, 2025



ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT ACTIVITY
September 19, 2025 to October 8, 2025

Correspondence from the Last Council:

Lundbreck Gardener’s and the Beaver Mines Community Association - Letter of Support
Alberta Forestry and Parks — Invitation to Council

Town of Pincher Creek — Clarification on Healthcare Committee

Alberta Foresty and Parks — Joint Letter with Cardston County

Advertising/Social:

Private snow removal deadline for inspection October 1, 2025
Community Peace Officer Open House — October 6, 2025
Road Construction — Christie Mines/Toney Drive

Notice of Election — Livingstone Range School Division
Bear Safety Workshop — October 3, 2025

Oldman Rose Society Event

Postal Disruption

South Canadian Rockies Survey

e Safety PSA — Large Equipment on Roads
e Safety PSA — Cattle Drives
e Official Election Results for MD of Pincher Creek
e Alberta Development Officers Week
Other Activities:

e Bear Awareness course with Waterton Biosphere
e Regular Committee, Council

Invites to Council:

e Invitation to Waterton/ID #4 to Attend Council — they will reach out later this Fall with a presentation
and to attend an MD Council meeting

e Invitation to Orphan Well Association — Attending November 12, 2025 Council Meeting

e Alberta Foresty and Parks — Attending November 12, 2025 Council Meeting

Upcoming Dates of Importance:

Regular Committee, Council — October 14, 2025

Community Solar Open House — October 23, 2025

Regular Committee, Council, Organizational Meeting — October 28, 2025
Veterans Day — November 11, 2025

Regular Committee, Council — November 12, 2025

Coffee with Council — November 13, 2025 — at MD Administration Office
RMA Convention — November 17-20, 2025

Regular Committee, Council — November 25, 2025

e SW Region Elected Officials Meeting — November 27, 2025



G4b















H1a

Report: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the
Kainai/Blood Tribe and the Town of Cardston & Surrounding Area

Executive Summary

In 2023-2024, the Kainai (Blood) Tribe and neighbouring municipalities — including the Town of
Cardston, Cardston County, Pincher Creek, Fort Macleod, and the MD of Pincher Creek — signed the
Kitsiskoaaminooniksi Neighbourly Agreement of Respect and Understanding.

The MOU commits partners to work together in four areas: health and wellness, economic
development, community planning, and communications. It addresses everyday issues faced by Blood
Tribe members who live, work, or do business in nearby towns.

Maintaining the MOU improves services, builds trust, strengthens the economy, and prepares the
region for emergencies.

Background & Scope

Origins & Signatories: Discussions began in 2022. A formal signing followed in early 2024. The MOU
builds on earlier agreements such as the Lethbridge—Kainai MOU.

Focus Areas: Health and wellness, Economic development, Community planning (land use,
environment, emergency response), Communications.

Early Results: Joint breakfasts, powwow events, and intergovernmental meetings show the MOU is
active, not symbolic.

Why the MOU Matters

Better Services Across Boundaries: Ensures smoother coordination in health, housing, policing, and
social services.

Stronger Economy: Shared planning attracts investment, prevents conflicts, and supports local jobs.
Effective Emergency Response: Agreed protocols save time during floods, wildfires, and other crises.
Reconciliation in Action: Builds trust and addresses racism and misunderstandings.

Clarity for Residents and Businesses: Reduces confusion, encourages commerce and cooperation.

Risks if the MOU Lapses

Service gaps return; goodwill fades; projects stall; responses slow; disputes re-emerge.

Recommendations



Strengthen Governance, Annual Workplan and Report, Stable Funding, Community Engagement,
Dispute Resolution, Regular Renewal.

Suggested First-Year Targets

One jointly funded pilot project, two public joint events, quarterly committee meetings with summaries.

Conclusion

The MOU is a framework for solving cross-boundary problems: health, jobs, planning, and emergency
response. With modest commitments — staff support, annual plans, steady funding, and regular review
— the MOU can turn goodwill into lasting results.



H1b

@ Outlook

New Year's Eve Fireworks at Castle Mountain

From Events <events@skicastle.ca>
Date Wed 2025-10-01 5:44 PM
To  Jessica McClelland <AdminExecAsst@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca>

Hello Jessica,

My name is Alex, and I'm the new Events Coordinator at Castle Mountain. | just wanted to
quickly introduce myself and also thank the MD of Pincher Creek for the support you’ve given
us in the past. Your help has really made it possible for us to keep the New Year’s Eve fireworks
going, something our guests and community look forward to every year!

We’re getting ready for this year’s celebration, and once again the fireworks will be the highlight
of the evening. Families especially love being able to enjoy the skiing and fireworks together,
and every year we see great attendance.

| was wondering if the MD might be interested in supporting the event again this year, as you
have so generously done in the past? Your contribution has always made a real difference.

If this sounds of interest, I'd be happy to chat more and share any details you'd like. Either way,
| truly appreciate the past support you've given.

Thank you for your time, I'm looking forward to hearing from you!

Kind regards,

ALEX BUROVA

Events Coordinator

Phone: 403.627.5101 x 289
Email: events@skicastle.ca
Web: www.skicastle.ca




BY EMAIL AND MAIL

Reeve Rick Lemire H1ic
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9

PO Box 279

Pincher Creek AB TOK 1WO0

September 24, 2025
CouncilDiv2@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
Dear Reeve Lemire,

Re: Upcoming Mandate Review of Canada Post Could Affect Jobs and Services in
Your Community

| am writing you to let you know that the Federal Government is planning a mandate review
of Canada Post from October 2025 to March 2026. At this time, we do not have details
regarding the format, process or terms of reference. We are very concerned that there is no
guarantee of public or stakeholder consultation (please see enclosure).

| had written you earlier this year about the Industrial Inquiry Commission (lIC) launched to
review negotiations between Canada Post and our union. Unfortunately, it examined issues
that were beyond collective bargaining and made some recommendations for drastic service
cuts. Notably, these were in the form of post office closures and to resume conversion to
community mailboxes — something the first Liberal Government after Harper was elected to
stop.

CUPW'’s recommendations for expanded services, including things like postal banking,
seniors check ins, community hubs, the reinstatement of an improved Food Mail Program,
were rejected as a means to immediately address the financial challenges faced by Canada
Post. This, despite the fact that many individuals, municipalities and organizations have
supported our efforts over the years.

Canada Post also used the IIC to set up its demands for regulatory changes that could form
the basis of the mandate review. We believe that regulatory changes should only be
examined after Canada Post returns to stabilized operations, the full impact of the January
2025 stamp price increase is realized, and when parcel volumes reflect sectoral demand.

Canadians deserve to have their say on a public service they own. Our Federal Government
must respect their voice, their needs, their communities, including those in rural, remote and
Northern locations, workers and their rights, and safeguard public services and jobs — not try
to quietly erode them.

| am asking your municipality to:
1) Pass a resolution asking for a delay on this mandate review,
2) Ask the Government to commit to a fully transparent, public process involving input
and hearings from all stakeholders in all regions, and;
3) Make a written and/or oral submission to the upcoming mandate review — if you
have the capacity and depending upon how the review is structured.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to reach out to me via Vanessa
Murenzi at vmurenzi@cupw-sttp.org

Thank you for your attention to this matter.
Sincerely,
Jan Simpson

National President
Canadian Union of Postal Workers


mailto:vmurenzi@cupw-sttp.org

Encl.

PS - We are pleased to see some municipal-level pushback around the unilateral change in
delivery practice for the red flags on rural mailboxes. This has raised concerns, in particular
for elderly residents and those with mobility issues, who now have to go to their mailbox to
check for mail.

c.c.:
National Executive Board
Regional Executive Committees
CUPW Locals

CUPW Specialists
/mlg cope 225

Appendix A

Canada Post Corporation Review

Notionally, public consultations may be undertaken to consider the Canadian Postal Service
Charter (2009) and to get a pulse on Canadians' needs and use of the postal service.
Should engagement be necessary, the goal would be obtain [sic] views from Canadians and
stakeholders to redefine the government's service-oriented vision for Canada Post, in a
context where the postal industry landscape has changed, the needs of Canadians have
evolved, and the volume of mail and letters has declined significantly to the point where
Canada Post's sustainability has been undermined.

Source: Secretariat, Treasury Board of Canada. 2025. “Consulting with Canadians.”
Canada.ca.
https://www.canada.ca/en/government/system/consultations/consultingcanadians.html.
Accessed September 5, 2025. Search term “Canada Post Corporation Review”



https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.canada.ca%2Fen%2Fgovernment%2Fsystem%2Fconsultations%2Fconsultingcanadians.html&data=05%7C02%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C43538e1957f94aaa917908ddfba89035%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C638943423609277080%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9Zi10sozUPxVd4OFU4SpH84nkfnWYP%2FXdPxIfs2tzAo%3D&reserved=0

Federal Government Plan: Canada Post Corporation Review

WHEREAS the Federal Government has announced a planned Canada Post Corporation Review
from October 1, 2025 to March 31, 2026 as follows:

Notionally, public consultations may be undertaken to consider the Canadian Postal
Service Charter (2009) and to get a pulse on Canadians' needs and use of the postal service.
Should engagement be necessary, the goal would be obtain [sic] views from Canadians and
stakeholders to redefine the government's service-oriented vision for Canada Post, in a
context where the postal industry landscape has changed, the needs of Canadians have
evolved, and the volume of mail and letters has declined significantly to the point where
Canada Post's sustainability has been undermined.’

WHEREAS the current plan does not ensure that there will be any public consultation or
engagement with all stakeholders, and the process and terms of reference for the mandate review
have yet to be announced.

WHEREAS the recent Industrial Inquiry Commission report recommended service cuts in the form
of post office closures and the reintroduction of the community mailbox conversion plans of the
last Federal Conservative government.

WHEREAS it will be crucial for the mandate review to hear the views from municipalities on key
issues, including maintaining Canada Post as a public service, the importance of maintaining the
moratorium on post office closures, improving the Canadian Postal Service Charter, home mail
delivery, parcel delivery, keeping daily delivery, improving postal banking, greening Canada Post, EV
charging stations, food delivery, improving delivery to rural, remote and Indigenous communities,
and developing services to assist people with disabilities and help older Canadians to remainin
their homes for as long as possible — and at the same time, helping to ensure that good jobs stay in
their communities and that Canada Post can remain financially self-sustaining.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that (name of municipality) formally writes the Minister of
Government Transformation, Public Works and Procurement, Joél Lightbound, to demand that no
mandate review takes place until Canada Post returns to stabilized operations, until the fullimpact
of the stamp price increase is realized, and until parcel volumes reflect sectoral demand.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that (name of municipality) will include in its letter to Minister
Lightbound that any review of Canada Post and the Canadian Postal Service Charter must be done
through a full and thorough transparent public review of Canada Post, including public hearings,
with all key stakeholders, in every region of Canada.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that (name of municipality) will make a written submission and/or
participate in hearings to provide input in the upcoming mandate review of Canada Post.

1 Secretariat, Treasury Board of Canada. 2025. “Consulting with Canadians.” Canada.ca.
https://www.canada.ca/en/government/system/consultations/consultingcanadians.html. Accessed
September 5, 2025. Search term “Canada Post Corporation Review”


https://www.canada.ca/en/government/system/consultations/consultingcanadians.html

MAILING INFORMATION

1) Please send your resolution to the Minster responsible for Canada Post, and your Member of
Parliament:

e Joél Lightbound, Federal Minister of Government Transformation, Public Works and
Procurement, House of Commons, Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0A6
e Your Member of Parliament

Note: Mail may be sent postage-free to any member of Parliament. You can get your MP’s name,
phone number and address by going to the Parliament of Canada website at
https://www.ourcommons.ca/Members/en

2) Please send copies of your resolution to:

e Jan Simpson, President, Canadian Union of Postal Workers, 377 Bank Street, Ottawa,
Ontario, K2P 1Y3

e Rebecca Bligh, President, Federation of Canadian Municipalities, 24 Clarence St, Ottawa,
Ontario, KIN 5P3


https://www.ourcommons.ca/Members/en

H2a



s Outlook H2b

Cavvy Energy WAG Report - Fall 2025

From Sophie Schneider <sophie.schneider@cavvyenergy.com>

Date Thu 2025-10-02 2:57 PM

Cc  Darrell Archibald <darrell.archibald@cavvyenergy.com>; Stephen DeCock
<stephen.decock@cavvyenergy.com>; Maureen Pasion <Maureen.Pasion@cavvyenergy.com>; Ken Doyle
<Ken.Doyle@cavvyenergy.com>; John Emery <john.emery@cavvyenergy.com>; Paul Kunkel
<Paul.Kunkel@cavvyenergy.com>; Erin Maczuga <erin.maczuga@cavvyenergy.com>

Sent on behalf of Waterton Superintendent, Darrell Archibald.

Hello and welcome back to the Cavvy Energy WAG Report.

Corporate Update

As of May 12, 2025, the Company has rebranded from Pieridae Energy to Cavvy Energy,
affirming our identity as a Western Canadian based energy company.

Rebrand

In ranching, a ‘Cavvy’ is a group of strong, reliable working horses trusted to get the job
done. What Cavvy Energy stands for — strength, reliability, and capability. We are still the
same Company, with the same people, but now our brand identity better reflects who we
are, and the work we do.

Q2 Financial and Operating Results
The Company’s Second Quarter Results were released earlier in August with the following
highlights:

e Generated NOI of $26.5 million ($0.09 per basic and fully diluted share) and Funds
Flow from Operations of $14.5 million ($0.05 per basic and fully diluted share).

e Reduced Net Debtl by $18.6 million from Q1 2025 to $166.9 million.

e Reduced operating expenses by $12.6 million (24%) compared to Q2 2024 to $40.4
million, reflecting both the shut-in of uneconomic production and the continued
reduction of operating cost structure.

* Increased third-party processing volumes by 66.0 MMcf/d (123%) compared to Q2,
2024 to 119.8 MMcf/d. This yielded higher third-party processing and marketing
revenue of $9.6 million, an increase of $5.4 million (129%) to compared to Q2 2024.

Check out the full results here: Financial Reports — Cavvy Energy,

News from Waterton Plant



Turnaround

The Waterton Complex will execute a Plant Outage from October 2 to October 18, 2025. This
Outage is required to perform maintenance on our Deep Cut Facility allowing us to increase
our propane recovery, proactively replace our gas dehydration mole sieve and replace our
sales gas compressor engine. We will take this opportunity to conduct a large portion of our
2025 Pipeline In-Line Inspection Program South of the Plant while performing pipeline visual
inspections in the Castle River/Carbondale Area.

Environmental
Please see below for highlights from our Waterton Environmental Coordinator:

e The Waterton Gas Plant’s Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act (EPEA)
approval renewal application work is on-going, and reviews of the draft application
have started this September. The renewal application will be submitted to the Alberta
Energy Regulator (AER) in Q4 2025, as the current EPEA approval is expiring in Q3
2026.

¢ The invasive species and vegetation control programs were completed in September
for 2025. Control methods utilized our integrated approach of chemical applications,
mowing and picking for bare ground and broadleaf weed control in the plant and field.

¢ The annual fall monitoring programs for soils, groundwater, and surface water
commenced in September and will continue into October in and around the gas plant
and at several field wellsite’s.

¢ The annual fugitive emissions testing program started in July at gas plant and field
compressors and will be completed in late October at the remaining field sites.

Regulatory Update

Waterton 61 Project — Pipeline Licence Amendment Application

Cavvy has applied to the AER to amend its licence to redirect natural gas from the Waterton
61 Well and 10-07 Well directly to the Carbondale Mainline via a new riser near 07-07-06-02
WS5M. This change would bypass both the gathering line (Pipeline Licence No. 23800-62-65)
and the compressor station located at 06-12-06-02 W5M. The Company believes the
amendment improves safety, reliability, and operational efficiency while reducing complexity
and risks to the public and environment, without negatively impacting third-party
stakeholders. The application is currently under review by the AER.

Inspection Results
Year-to-date, Cavvy has achieved a 100% satisfactory inspection rate from the AER for its
Waterton field operations—well above the industry average of 73%.

Emergency Preparedness

Cavvy has scheduled an emergency response exercise for November, in compliance with
regulatory requirements.

THANK YOU






	A  Council Agenda
	C1 2025-09-23 Draft Committee Meeting Minutes
	C2 2025-09-23 meeting minutes
	F1a WBRA September
	G1a PW Report
	G1b UI Brief
	G3a Road Closure Resolution
	G3b Community Energy Analysis
	G4a CAO Report
	G4b Feedback
	H1a MOU_Tightened_Version
	H1b New Year’s Eve Fireworks at Castle Mountain -
	H1c1 Canada Post
	H2a Kootenai Brown’s Spooky Town Poster
	H2b Cavvy Energy WAG Report - Fall 2025
	H2c Pincher comm energy open house (1)



